
April 27, 2022 



2



Metropolitan Transit Commission April 27, 2022 Agenda 

METROPOLITAN TRANSIT COMMISSION 
Wednesday, April 27, 2022 

5:00pm 
Charlotte-Mecklenburg Government Center 

WebEx  
AGENDA 

I. Call to Order ................................................................................. Commissioner Leigh Altman 
• Attendance (Roll Call)

II. Approval of the March 23, 2022 Summary (p.5-10) ..................... Commissioner Leigh Alman 

III. Report from the Chair of the Transit Service Advisory Committee (TSAC) .... Krissy Oechslin 

IV. Report from the Chair of the Citizens Transit Advisory Group (CTAG) .............. Adam Paisak 

V. Public Comments

VI. Informational Items
• Envision My Ride – Bus Priority Study Update (p.12-32) ........................... Bruce Jones 
• Regional Coordinated Human Services Plan Update (p.34-50) ................ Arlanda Rouse 

VII. Action Items
• FY2022 Amended Operating and Debt Service Budget (p.52-58) ...... Blanche Sherman 

FY2022-FY2026 Amended Capital Investment Plan 
• FY2023 Proposed Operating & Debt Services Budgets (p.60-113) ......... John Lewis, Jr 

FY2023-27 Capital Investment Plan .................................................... Blanche Sherman 

VIII. MTC Commissioners’ Business
• None

IX. Chief Executive Officer’s Report (p.115-118) .................................................... John Lewis, Jr 

X. Adjourn

3



4



Metropolitan Transit Commission  
Meeting Summary March 23, 2022 Page 1 of 6 

METROPOLITAN TRANSIT COMMISSION 
MEETING SUMMARY 

March 23, 2022
(Approved on April 27, 2022)

Presiding:  Commissioner Leigh Altman, Mecklenburg County Board of Commissioners 

Present:  
Marcus Jones, (City Manager, Charlotte) 
Mayor Woody Washam (Town of Cornelius) 
Andrew Grant (Town Manager, Cornelius) 
Mayor Rusty Knox (Town of Davidson) 
Jamie Justice (Town Manager, Davidson) 
Mayor Melinda Bales (Town of Huntersville) 
Anthony Roberts (Town Manager, Huntersville) 
Mayor John Higdon (Town of Matthews) 
Mayor Pro-Tem Renee Garner (Matthews) 

Brian Welch (Town Manager, Mint Hill) 
Randy Hemann (Town Manager, Mooresville) 
Bill Thunberg (Mooresville Representative) 
Mayor Walker Reid III, (City of Gastonia) 
Michael Peoples (City Manager, Gastonia) 
Randi Gates (GCLMPO, Gastonia) 
Brian Borne (Interim City Manager, Monroe) 
Mayor William Dusch, (City of Concord)

CATS Chief Executive Officer: John Lewis, Jr 

I. Call to Order
The regular meeting of Metropolitan Transit Commission was called to order via WebEx
conferencing at 5:30pm by Mecklenburg County Commissioner Leigh Altman.

II. Review of Meeting Summary
The meeting summary of February 23, 2022 was approved.

III. Transit Services Advisory Committee (TSAC) Chairman’s Report
Krissy Oechslin (Chairwoman) reported the following recap:  At our last TSAC meeting

we heard about the battery electric bus pilot that's currently being rolled out.  We also had an
in-depth look at the Envision My Ride Bus Priority Study that will be coming before the MTC for
a vote in the coming months.  As transit riders we support all efforts to improve the bus system
by providing more and better bus stop amenities and by improving the frequency and reliability
of the bus system through things like traffic signal priority and queue jumping.

We also got a preview of all the service changes that CATS is planning to roll out
throughout the year, such as increasing frequency on many local and express bus routes, as well
as some potential new cross-town routes.

Finally, we heard that CATS has been able to increase the frequency of trains on the
Blue Line.  It's been a recurring theme in our monthly meetings that we've heard feedback from
train riders that ridership was increasing, and trains were crowded because it was such a long
wait between trains.  Moving from 20-minute headways to 15 minutes during peak hours is a
step in the right direction.  We hope that service frequency will continue to improve as needed,
especially during sports events when there have been significant crowds and long waits for
trains.

IV. Citizens Transit Advisory Group (CTAG) Chairman’s Report – No Report

V. Public Comments – None

5



Metropolitan Transit Commission  
Meeting Summary March 23, 2022 Page 2 of 6 

VI. Informational Item
A. LYNX Silver Line Rail Trail Study Update  Jason Lawrence
Jason Lawrence – CATS Senior Transportation Planner – made a presentation an update on
LYNX Silver Line Rail Trail Study, based on pages 12-27 in the MTC Agenda packet for March 23rd,
2022 meeting.

Discussion:
COMMISSIONER ALTMAN (Mecklenburg County):  What would be the funding source

for this?  Is it the MTC budget?

MR. LAWRENCE:  I think that's where we are working through.  Really that comes down 
to the definition of what the project is built with.  If there's an opportunity to construct the 
project, which we're still trying to ascertain whether or not that's possible, if it's considered part 
of the station access that could be an opportunity, but we're still in the early stages of where all 
of that funding would lay out.  It could be part of a capital improvement plan.  We've done Blue 
Line South and Northeast, there was capital investment plans around each station that built 
roads and sidewalk connections with the station project.  That could be another potential 
funding source as we look at bonded city projects.  I think that's still to be determined.  We'll be 
getting more information about that as we move along in the plan. 

COMMISSIONER ALTMAN (Mecklenburg County Board of Commissioners):  Okay.  And 
the South End Rail Trail, who paid for that? 

MR. LAWRENCE:  Large sections of that project were built with the development 
community as they built out the project.  There were sections that were built through City CATS 
funds, but the majority of the project as I understand, most of it was built through the 
development coordination. 

COMMISSIONER ALTMAN (Mecklenburg County Board of Commissioners):  Well, it is a 
much-loved amenity, and I'm glad and excited by the planning and thinking, more thought given 
to extending that amenity throughout this proposed line. 

B. Silver Line TOD Planning Study Update John Howard 
John Howard – CATS Transportation Planner – made a presentation an update on Silver Line 
TOD Planning Study, based on pages 29-37 in the MTC Agenda packet for March 23rd, 2022 
meeting. 

Discussion: 
COMMISSIONER ALTMAN (Mecklenburg County Board of Commissioners):  If I 

understand, page 13 of the presentation tells us that you have a grant.  And that this is 
something that's coming, that this study is going to be done.  By the way, who funded this 
grant?  Where did the funds come from for the grant? 

MR. HOWARD:  Just like a TOD study, it was an FTA award. 

COMMISSIONER ALTMAN (Mecklenburg County Board of Commissioners):  It's federal 
dollars? 

6



Metropolitan Transit Commission  
Meeting Summary March 23, 2022 Page 3 of 6 

MR. HOWARD:  Yes 

COMMISSIONER ALTMAN (Mecklenburg County Board of Commissioners):  You're 
going to be bringing in a group that's expert in this or this is our staff doing this? 

MR. HOWARD:  Similar to the other projects here we would probably bring in a 
consultant to help with this level of work.  It's going to be pretty intensive and again lots of 
meetings and lots of coordination efforts with neighborhoods and other groups, so this would 
be consultant-driven but also with a lot of staff input as well. 

COMMISSIONER ALTMAN (Mecklenburg County Board of Commissioners):  That's 
great.  Do you expect the consultant to obviously build on, I guess 1 through 9, is what staff has 
already developed in our toolbox and we're looking for the consultant to help add additional 
strategies, is that what we're doing with this? 

MR. HOWARD:  I think partly that is what we're going to do is continue this 
conversation, but again, getting more granular with the public about it and maybe having them 
also give ideas that aren't on this list.  It's not exhaustive, but it is a way to get the conversation 
kind of restarted if you will and just do a little more focus work about what equity means.  We 
do look at probably expanding this list possibly.  We're still working on refining the scope for the 
grant, given the reduced amount that we got.  We actually applied for 800,000 and we got 
405,000, so we had to go back over the scope again to make sure we can meet the project goals. 

COMMISSIONER ALTMAN (Mecklenburg County Board of Commissioners):  That's 
great; that's wonderful. 

CATS CEO LEWIS:  I'd like to add a little bit to John's response on that.  One of the 
reasons that we began this study was clearly the broader goals of the City and the community 
outside of the mobility aspect.  As John mentioned, housing and equitable transit-oriented 
development are a few of those, but one of the things we learned very clearly from lessons 
learned from the Blue Line extension and the South Corridor is that CATS could not address 
these issues on its own, and a lot of this was not just identifying the strategies that could be 
used, but an important part of this is going to be engaging the coalition of partners that will help 
us achieve these broader goals.  I think when we look back at the South Corridor and some of 
the areas where CATS went alone, we fell short of the goal. 

We can talk about Scaleybark.  We thought at that time that if we accumulated 
property, we put a station there, that the market would handle the rest.  I think what was 
obvious is that we needed to be intentional, we needed to cast a wide net, and we needed to 
come up with a very specific outcome-based strategy at the beginning of the project, not after 
we had built the project.  What you are seeing here is some of the recommendations.  Our 
second grant will help us get more detailed and really work hard on that coalition bill. 

COMMISSIONER ALTMAN (Mecklenburg County Board of Commissioners):  Wow, I 
think that's wonderful, and I'm excited at the prospect of this becoming more granular with 
public input, so thank you very much. 

7



   
Metropolitan Transit Commission  
Meeting Summary March 23, 2022 Page 4 of 6 

MAYOR HIGDON (Town of Matthews):  Will the grant opportunity extend beyond 
Charlotte or is it going to be focused only in Charlotte? 
 

MR. HOWARD:  Mostly focused within the city limits.  We do have some supporting 
document from Matthews, but it will be primarily a Charlotte centric study. 
 

COMMISSIONER ALTMAN (Mecklenburg County Board of Commissioners):  Well, Mr. 
Lewis, we certainly want our Towns to be able to benefit from this important work, and I'm 
concerned if we have towns that have that interest and may sort of be missing the boat.  Do you 
have any thoughts on that? 
 

CATS CEO LEWIS:  I think we will have the opportunity as we're working through the 
scope of this project to identify working with the Towns, identify ways that we can expand this 
project.  I think typically, these kind of housing and economic developments, are outside the 
scope of the transit focus, but if it is the goal of the MTC and if it is the consensus of the Board 
that we'd like to expand, we'll find a way to make that work. 

 
VII.        Action Item - None 

 
VIII.       MTC Commissioners’ Business - None 
 
IX. Chief Executive Officer’s Report  

 John Lewis, Jr. – CATS CEO provided the following report:  Echoing some of the 
comments that were made by our chair of our Transit Service Advisory Committee, over the last 
two years we know as a result of the pandemic and many external factors that went along with 
that reality, transit ridership across the nation dropped precipitously.  In March of 2020 our 
ridership was reduced almost overnight by anywhere from 70% to 80%.  Since then, our bus 
ridership has continued to grow on a steady basis.  We are about 50% to 60% of where we were 
this time two years ago.  But our rail ridership, which is very much in sync with the employment 
commute and the state of the environment from an economic and employment standpoint, the 
rail ridership has lagged behind. 
 But I think we have a couple of bright spots on the horizon that point to the fact that 
transit is going to make a comeback.  When we had large events in Uptown, whether that be 
Panthers games or Hornets games or recent soccer games, the amount of demand for our rail 
ridership has been as great as it was before the pandemic.  I think that points to when citizens in 
our region have destinations that they want to go to, and particularly our rail and bus service 
can serve those needs, they're coming back and making use of our system. 
 Now, we were a little bit surprised by the level of ridership that we've had for the most 
recent soccer games.  We are making those adjustments, but from a transit provider standpoint, 
full trains are a good thing, full platforms are a good thing.  This past weekend we inserted four 
unscheduled trains to help relieve that, but I think this bodes well for us into the future. 
 Also, working with our Transit Service Advisory Committee we've heard anecdotally that 
as businesses are beginning to reopen to in-person workplace that our rail ridership and some 
trains in the morning and in the afternoon commute times are a little more crowded than we've 
been used to in the last couple of years.  Anticipating not just the recent opening of Wells Fargo 
but the imminent back to work notices from Bank of America, we are going to adjust our service 
levels in the next week on the Blue Line from 20-minute headways or intervals to 15 minutes.  

8



Metropolitan Transit Commission  
Meeting Summary March 23, 2022 Page 5 of 6 

We're doing our best to continue to follow demand of our customers and provide the service 
levels that they will need. 

I think this trend will continue as whether or not we are transitioning out of the 
pandemic or learning to live with the pandemic, we're definitely seeing a rising demand in public 
transit services and we'll continue to meet that demand, paying particular attention to our 
ridership and keeping in close contact with our TSAC committee. 

One of the things that we heard, again working with TSAC and our riders committee, is 
the need to take advantage of technology to provide real-time information to our customers.  
We launched our CATS-Pass bus app in October of last year, and this app has had great 
utilization.  Over 40,000 users on a daily basis have downloaded the app and continue to use 
that. 

One of the things that we've learned is we need to do a better job at marketing that.  
Some of our customers are still going to our old application.  We are working hard to provide 
the information they need to transition to our new app but also providing tutorials for 
customers to really understand how to use this new technology which gives you real-time 
information of where your next bus is.  I'd just like to give a shout-out to our marketing 
communications department.  This is our latest marketing campaign that will be released later 
this week. 
We are really excited about the future of this app as we continue.  We are planning to integrate 
our Light Rail and Gold Line streetcar services later this spring, and I will say I am most excited 
about our fare capping option that we will be rolling out soon.  That really is an equity issue, for 
so many of our cash paying customers who are laying out $2.20 each and every time they are 
using our service, generally they're paying more for the same service that many others are 
getting a discount for by laying out $88 at the beginning of the month. 

This application will allow us that once our cash paying customers reach that monthly 
pass limit, that the rest of the month they will be acting as if they have that monthly pass.  This 
really levels the playing field from an equity standpoint and something that we're really excited 
about rolling out.  Stay tuned for that, but we're really pleased with the functionality of our new 
CATS-Pass app thus far. 

Discussion: 
MS. OECHSLIN (TSAC Chairwoman):  This is amazing news.  We've been pushing for fare 

capping for several years at least, ever since I've been on TSAC, I'm like super excited to hear 
this.  I hope we'll hear more.  I mean I'm certain we'll hear more in the TSAC meeting but I hope 
we'll hear more in an MTC meeting.  Just like you said, fare capping is like a payment plan for 
people who can't afford the upfront cost because it's expensive to be poor.  People who can at 
least afford it should also enjoy the benefits of a monthly pass.  I'm really thrilled to hear that. 

Also, I was wondering if you had a time frame to when the trains would be included in 
the CATS-Pass app real-time tracking. 

CATS CEO LEWIS:  Our goal is by early summer, but I will get you an exact date at the 
next MTC meeting.   

X. Other Business – None

XI. Adjourn

9



   
Metropolitan Transit Commission  
Meeting Summary March 23, 2022 Page 6 of 6 

The meeting was adjourned at 6:28 p.m. Mecklenburg County Commissioner Leigh Altman – 
MTC Chairwoman. 

NEXT MTC MEETING:  WEDNESDAY, APRIL 27TH, 2022; STARTS AT 5:00 P.M.  

10



11



METROPOLITAN TRANSIT COMMISSION 
INFORMATION ITEM 

INFORMATION SUMMARY 
 
 
SUBJECT: Envision My Ride: Bus Priority Study Update                     DATE:  April 27, 2022  
   
  
1.0 PURPOSE/SCOPE: CATS will provide information on the ongoing Envision My Ride Bus 

Priority Study during the April meeting before seeking MTC plan adoption in May of this 
year. The presentation will focus on the recommendations of the study which include the 
future high frequency bus network, priority bus treatment types, mobility hub locations, a 
bus stop and ADA improvement plan, policy updates to improve the bus stop amenity 
rollout process, and microtransit zones to support first / last mile connections.  

 
BACKGROUND/JUSTIFICATION: As a continuation of the Envision My Ride (EMR) 
effort, CATS began a Bus Priority study in 2021. This study will develop speed and 
reliability recommendations for the proposed EMR high frequency network. This analysis 
will include an evaluation of the following: queue jumpers, signal priority/preemption, 
dedicated bus lanes and related bus priority treatments. Additional deliverables will 
include proposed system wide bus stop amenity improvements, mobility hub locations, 
first / last mile solutions, and recommendations to improve the customer experience. 
 

 
2.0 PROCUREMENT BACKGROUND: N/A   
 
3.0 POLICY IMPACT: N/A 
 
4.0 ECONOMIC IMPACT: N/A 
 
5.0 ALTERNATIVES: N/A 
 
6.0 RECOMMENDATION: N/A 
 
7.0 ATTACHMENT(S): N/A 

 
    SUBMITTED AND RECOMMENDED BY: 
 

     
    __________________________________________ 
    John M. Lewis, Jr. 
    Chief Executive Officer, Charlotte Area Transit System 

Director of Public Transit, City of Charlotte 

12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



METROPOLITAN TRANSIT COMMISSION 
INFORMATION ITEM 
STAFF SUMMARY 

SUBJECT: Regional Coordinated Human Services Plan Update   DATE: April 27, 2022 

1.0 PURPOSE/SCOPE:  To present the draft Coordinated Public Transit Human Services 
Transportation Plan Update. The plan presentation will assess current transportation 
services available in the region for older adults and individuals with disabilities, as well 
as provide recommendations to address unmet needs and opportunities for the 
coordination of transportation services, and the next steps for the plan implementation. 

2.0 BACKGROUND/JUSTIFICATION:  The plan is required under the federal Enhanced 
Mobility of Seniors & Individuals with Disabilities-Section 5310.  The plan is updated 
every 5 years, with the last plan update occurring in 2016. 

The region is allocated Section 5310 funds annually. CATS was designated to serve as 
the direct recipient of the 5310 funding, and is responsible for the administrative of the 
funds, which includes awarding, reporting, and subrecipient oversite.   

Transit agencies and non-profits are eligible to apply for the funding through a 
competitive selection process.  To apply for funding, agencies must submit applications, 
which provide background information, assurance of matching funds and details of plans 
to address an unmet need found within the “Recommendations” section of the 
Coordinated Public Transit Human Services Transportation Plan.  

3.0 POLICY IMPACT:  N/A 

4.0 ECONOMIC IMPACT:  N/A 

5.0 ALTERNATIVES:  N/A 

6.0 RECOMMENDATION: N/A 

7.0 ATTACHMENT(S):  Draft Coordinated Public Transit Human Services Transportation 
Plan Recommendations 

SUBMITTED AND RECOMMENDED BY: 

__________________________________________ 
John M Lewis, Jr. 
Chief Executive Officer, Charlotte Area Transit System 
Director of Public Transit, City of Charlotte 

34



Implmmmntation 

Pmriod
Typm Rmcommmndation Dmscription

Near-Term 
Mobility Management and 

Agency Coordination

Establish iegional Mobility 

Manager position(s) 

(CONNECT Beyond C-09)

The iegional Mobility Manager would help coordinate on 

policies that support public transit, build local partnerships and 

help coordinate transportatoin services across service providers 

and funding agencies in the region. The iegional Mobility 

Manager would also support the development of information 

tools and trip planning tools for transit riders.

Near-Term 
Mobility Management and 

Agency Coordination

Establish a Paratransit 

Working Group (CONNECT 

Beyond D-03)

Establish a Paratransit Working Group that is made up of 

representatives from each Community Transportation Provider in 

the region and is coordinated by the iegional Mobility Manager. 

The objective of this Working Group should be to coordinate 

paratransit policies and operations region-wide and to work 

together to implement CONNECT Beyond recommendations 

related to Community Transportation Services.

Near-Term 
Mobility Management and 

Agency Coordination
Travel Training 

Establish transportation kiosks in senior / low income housing 

and social service locations, create a demonstration bus, create a 

mobile classroom,  and provide one-on-one instruction, as well 

as group instruction, to target populations for “first and last mile” 

access

Near-Term Organizational Assessments

ieview the Impacts of 

Medicaid Managed Care on 

Transportation Providers in 

the iegion (CONNECT 

beyond C-03)

Community Transportation Providers should assess the impact of 

Medicaid Managed Care by maintaining records for system 

ridership and financials to determine impacts on system 

operations.

Near-Term Customer Service
iegional Information Center 

(CONNECT Beyond D-37)

One-Click One-Call Center or iegional Transit Information 

Website 

Near-Term Customer Service Improve service times

ieduce reservation wait times and expand eligibility and 

frequency for on-demand trips in areas served by Community 

Transportation Providers (outside of existing fixed route and 

deviated fixed route service areas).

Near-Term
Facility Improvements and 

Safety

Develop a comprehensive 

transit safety and convenience 

program (CONNECT Beyond 

D-26)

Develop a comprehensive safety and convenience program for 

transit users, operators, other staff, and the public (a systematic 

approach to review issues in proximity to transit stops and 

address them through lighting, access improvements, safety 

officers, etc .).

Near-Term
Facility Improvements and 

Safety

Improve access to existing 

public transit stops

Upgrade bus stops with highest ridership with bus shelters, 

improve ADA compliant bus stop pads and  upgrade lighting.   

Add Braille to fixed-route bus stops signs.

Near-term
Mobility Management and 

Agency Coordination

Improve marketing and 

information sharing about 

existing services (short-term)

Help seniors and individuals with disabilities connect with 

existing transit services, coordinate with travel training for seniors 

and individuals with disabilities to help them navigate transit 

services.

Mid-Term Connectivity
Microtransit /Community 

Shuttle Pilot Program

Test a pilot and implement microtransit /on-demand community 

shuttle services with ADA-accessible vehicles and same day 

reservation capabilities in high demand areas to expand the 

reach of existing fixed route and deviated fixed route transit

Charlottm Urbanizmd Arma Coordinatmd Public Transit-Human SmrTicms Transportation Plan Draft Rmcommmndations

April 2022

35



Implmmmntation 

Pmriod
Typm Rmcommmndation Dmscription

Mid-Term Connectivity Mobility Hubs pilot program

Test a pilot and implement mobility hubs at key station areas to 

improve transfer and waiting areas with access to a variety of last-

mile solutions including pedestrian access, ride sharing, 

microtransit/shuttles and taxi services

Mid-Term Customer Service

ieduce reservation wait times 

for on-demand transportation 

and ADA Paratransit

Provide same-day on-demand transportation services including 

ADA Paratransit /Special Transportation Service (STS)

Mid-Term Service Expansion Increase Service Increase trips for on-demand non-emergency trips

Mid-term Service Expansion Expand service 
Expand On-Demand and Community Transportation Service 

Hours (Evenings and Weekends)

Mid-Term Connectivity

Volunteer Transportation 

Services Program (CONNECT 

Beyond C-20)

Launch a redesigned regional Volunteer Transportation Services 

Program for older adults and people with disabilities. This 

program is intended as a safety net service for those who do not 

qualify or cannot access other transit services.

Mid-term Connectivity
Expand Mobility Choices 

(CONNECT Beyond B-21)

Identify small area or station area plans that coincide with 

mobility hub candidate areas and incorporate hub elements into 

the area plans. This should be completed after the alternatives 

analysis study for future HCT and in coordination with existing 

fixed-route and human services plans.

Mid-Term Connectivity

Establishing connecting 

service procedures between 

transit providers

Create new and improved transfer locations, improve 

communication methods, and schedule software, and improve 

agreements between agencies to be able to transfer passengers 

for longer trips

Mid-Term Connectivity

Strengthen iural to Urban 

Connections (CONNECT 

Beyond C-01)

Involve Community Transportation Providers in CONNECT 

Beyond Service Planning Working Group to ensure service 

improvements are coordinated at a regional level (2-3 

times/year )

Mid-Term Customer Service
iegional Fare Strategy 

(CONNECT Beyond B-19)

Develop fare interoperability agreements between CATS, iider, 

ICATS and other connecitng agencies. Implement a shared 

regional mobile ticketing platform that allows for access by under-

banked individuals and individuals with disabilities 

Mid-Term Customer Service

iegional Platform for Demand 

iesponse Trip Scheduling and 

Dispatching (CONNECT 

Beyond D-53)

Integrate demand response trip scheduling and dispatching 

systems into a single regional platform.

36



Implmmmntation 

Pmriod
Typm Rmcommmndation Dmscription

Mid-Term Customer Service

Develop a standardized ADA 

certification process across all 

agencies and reciprocity 

agreements (CONNECT 

Beyond D-19)

A standardized process and reciprocity agreements would greatly 

improve user experience by eliminating unnecessary transfers .

Mid-Term Customer Service Sensitivity Training
Provide disability sensitivity training to taxi and limousine drivers.  

Mid-term
Mobility Management and 

Agency Coordination

Expand Mobility Choices-

Promote iegional 

Coordinatoin on Emerging 

Mobility Technology 

(CONNECT Beyond B-06)

In coordination with the existing Connected and Autonomous 

Vehicle Task Force convened by Centralina iegional Council 

iegional Council, establish an Emerging Mobility Working Group. 

The Group will engage transit stakeholders to understand current 

and future technology needs and set a path for the effective 

Mid-term Organizational Assessments 

iegional Paratransit and 

Community Transportation  

Scheduling Integration 

(CONNECT Beyond D-09)

Perform a regional Paratransit and Community Transportation  

Scheduling Integration and Implementation Study.

Mid-Term Service Expansion 

Improve Existing Services-

Community Transportation 

and On-Demand 

Transportation Services 

1. Expand medical appointments transportation including dialysis 

transportation

2. Purchase larger vehicles to accommodate over-sized mobility aids

3. Improve transportation options for employment and related needs

4. Improve access to transportation for veterans and others with visual 

impairments

5. Upgrade vehicle fleets to include more fuel-efficient, environmentally-

friendly options

Long-Term
Mobility Management and 

Agency Coordination

Unified iegional Paratransit 

Scheduling Software 

(CONNECT Beyond D-69)

CONNECT Beyond recommends the region Community 

Transportation Providers adopt a unified regional community 

transportation and paratransit scheduling software to help better 

coordinate paratransit services throughout the region.

Long-Term Organizational Assessments
Evaluate additional funding 

options 

Expand additional public transportation funding options in the 

region. ieview next steps to generate additional public 

transportation revenue streams to support future service 

expansion

Long-Term
Facility Improvements and 

Safety

Upgrade bus stops with ADA 

accessible loading pads and 

walk access routes as part of 

roadway projects design and 

construction (Complete 

Streets implementation).

As part of Complete Streets policy implementation, ensure bus 

stops in the region are upgraded with ADA accessible loading 

pads and walk access routes during roadway projects design and 

construction.

37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



METROPOLITAN TRANSIT COMMISSION 
ACTION ITEM 

STAFF SUMMARY 

SUBJECT: MTC Approval   DATE:  April 27, 2022 
FY2022 Transit Operating Budget Amendments 
FY2022 Transit Capital Investment Plan (CIP) Budget Amendment 

1.0 ACTION: 
In compliance with the Transit Governance Interlocal Agreement, the Metropolitan 
Transit Commission is required to take action concerning the CATS’ FY2022 operating 
and capital budget amendments based on the chief executive officer’s recommendation. 

2.0 BACKGROUND: 
On April 20, 2021, the Metropolitan Transit Commission took action to approve the 
FY2022 Transit Operating Budget and The FY2022-2026 Transit Capital Investment 
Plan (CIP) budget.  The CATS FY2022 Operating Budget and The FY2022-2026 Capital 
Investment Plan (CIP) were presented in compliance with the Transit Governance 
Interlocal Agreement.  The balanced budgets were developed in compliance with CATS 
Financial Policy guidelines and objectives. 

Based on anticipated revenue decreases and employee incentives, CATS’ staff is 
requesting the following budget amendments: 

 Changes to the FY2022 Operating Revenue Budget are below:
o Estimated reduction in Fare Revenue $6,669,364
o Reduction of SMAP Funding $1,854,444

 Of the $11,063,205 estimated for FY2022 only $9,208,761 was
allocated to Charlotte.

o Increase in Sales Tax Operating Allocation $9,050,910
 As a result of the Sales Tax Trendline adjustment

o Slight decreased in COVID relief funding $527,102 needed for cleaning.
 Changes to the FY2022 Operating Expense Budget are below:

o Increase in Security $760,000
 Enhancements to Safety & Security contract

o Increase for Recruitment and Retention Bonuses $1,970,000
o Reduction for Staff Vacancies $2,730,000

Revenue
FY2022 Adopted Budget 185,836,947$  
Fare Revenue (6,669,364)       
Sales Tax Operating Allocation 9,050,910         
COVID Relief Funding (527,102)           
Non-Operating Revenue (SMAP) (1,854,444)       
FY2022 Amended Operating Revenue 185,836,947$  

Expenses
FY2022 Adopted Budget 185,836,947$  
Security Enhancements 760,000            
Recruitment and Retention Bonuses 1,970,000         
Staff Vacancies (2,730,000)       
FY2022 Amended Operating Expenses 185,836,947$  

52



 Changes to the FY2022 CIP Budget are below: 
o Land Acquisitions 

 Increase of $1,358,517 for Various Land Swaps transactions 
 Increase of $3,400,000 for Arboretum Land Acquisition-

Condemnation 
 Increase of $3,668,419 for Kia Land Acquisition 

o Electric Vehicle Chargers 
 Increase of $500,000 
 Equipment for Non-revenue supervisor vehicles 
 Part of the City’s initiative to convert all fleet to Electric 

o Rail Car Vehicle 
 Increase of $4,731,581 
 Additional funding for Rail Car Vehicle Expansion 

o BLE Additional Projects 
 Increase of $25,787,675 
 As a result of federal savings on the Blue Line Extension project 

FTA allowed CATS to use the remaining on additional projects.  
The $30M awarded for additional projects includes the Southend 
Station which was already included in the CIP budget. 

o BLE Adjustment  
 Decrease of $43,544,695 to adjust to current budget. 

o Bus Replacement and State Matching Funds  
 Decrease of $1,986,129 
 A shift in funds from bus replacement to rail vehicles and 

additional funding from NCDOT for Bus Replacement  
o Vanpool Replacement 

 Increase of $35,416 for additional funding from 5310 grants.  
 
 

 
 

 

FY2022 Adopted Budget 245,401,018$        
Land Swaps 1,358,517               
Arboretum Land 3,400,000               
Bus Replacements & State Match (1,986,129)             
Electric Vehicle Chargers 500,000                  
BLE Additional Projects 25,787,675            
Rail Vehicles 4,731,581               
Kia Land Acquisition 3,668,419               
BLE  (43,544,695)           
Vanpool Replacement 35,416                     
FY2022 Amended Budget 239,351,802$        

FY2022 Adopted Budget Federal State Private Soft Match Local Total
Land Swaps -$                     -$                  1,358,517$ -$                  -$                1,358,517$   
Arboretum Land -                            -                         -                     -                         3,400,000      3,400,000     
Bus Replacements & State Match (2,693,441)         707,313            -                     -                         -                       (1,986,128)    
Electric Vehicle Chargers -                            -                         -                     -                         500,000          500,000         
BLE Additional Projects 15,150,000        -                         490,948       -                         10,146,727    25,787,675   
Rail Vehicles -                            -                         -                     -                         4,731,581      4,731,581     
Kia Land Acquisition -                            -                         -                     -                         3,668,419      3,668,419     
BLE  (11,396,152)      (16,358,431)    -                     (15,790,112)    -                       (43,544,695) 
Vanpool Replacement 24,747                -                         -                     -                         10,669            35,416           

FY2022 Amended Budget 1,085,154$        (15,651,118)$  1,849,465$ (15,790,112)$  22,457,396$ (6,049,215)$ 

53



 
 
 

 
3.0 PROCUREMENT BACKGROUND:  N/A 

 
4.0 POLICY IMPACT:  The recommended FY2022 Operating and Capital Investment Plan 

(CIP) Budget Amendment remain in compliance with the following MTC Policy directives, 
except where impacted by the COVID-19 pandemic 
 
A. CATS Mission, Vision, and Strategic Goals 
B. CATS Financial Policies (Rev. 2016) 
C. The 2030 Transit Corridor System Plan 
D. CATS Service and Fare Policies 

 
5.0 ECONOMIC IMPACT: N/A 

 
6.0 ALTERNATIVES: N/A 

 
7.0 RECOMMENDATION:  CATS Chief Executive Officer recommends approval of the 

FY2022 budget amendments. 
  

8.0 ATTACHMENT(S):  N/A  
 
    SUBMITTED AND RECOMMENDED BY: 
 

     
    ______________________________________________  
    John M. Lewis, Jr. 
    Chief Executive Officer, Charlotte Area Transit System  
    Director of Public Transit, City of Charlotte  

54



55



56



57



58



59



METROPOLITAN TRANSIT COMMISSION 
ACTION ITEM 

STAFF SUMMARY 

SUBJECT: MTC Approval   DATE:  April 27, 2022 
FY2023 Transit Operating Budget & Debt Services Budget 
FY2023-2027 Transit Capital Investment Plan (CIP) 

1.0 ACTION: 
In compliance with the Transit Governance Interlocal Agreement, the Metropolitan 
Transit Commission is required to take action on CATS budgets and CIP by April 30 of 
each year. 
MTC Action is included in Resolution 2022-02 

2.0 BACKGROUND: 
On January 26, 2022, CATS presented the CEO recommended FY2023 Operating 
Budget, FY2023 Debt Service Budget and FY2023-2027 Capital Investment Plan (CIP) 
to the Metropolitan Transit Commission.   

Key elements of the Operating Budgets are: 

 COVID-19 Relief
o Funding for Transit to cover cost incurred as result of the COVID-19

pandemic, including personal protective equipment, protection equipment
on fleet, services excess operating expenses, preventive maintenance
and mid-life overhaul expenses

 Safety and Support
o Safety Enhancements to support Bus, Rail, Streetcar operations,

Charlotte Transportation Center (CTC), and funding for new personnel.
 New All-Access Pass Agreements

o Funding for universities and colleges along the CityLYNX Goldline
corridor such as Johnson and Wales and Johnson C. Smith Universities
and Central Piedmont Community College.

Key elements of the Capital Budgets are: 

 State of Good Repair
o Priorities include replacement of fixed-route diesel buses with fully electric

buses, Special Transportation Services (STS) buses and vanpool
vehicles, and facility upgrades and enhancements.

 Technology Upgrades
o Funding to enhance delivery of transit services, asset and financial

management, including replacing the City’s Enterprise system, Access
Control System Upgrade, and Automatic Vehicle Locator (AVL)
replacement.

3.0 RECOMMENDATION: 
CATS Chief Executive Officer recommends approval of the following budgets: 
FY2023 Operating Budget  
FY2023 Debt Service Budget 
FY2023-2027 Community Investment Plan 

60



4.0 ATTACHMENT(S):  CATS FY2023 Proposed Operating and Debt Service Budget and 
FY2023-2027 Proposed Capital Investment Plan Information Booklet 

SUBMITTED AND RECOMMENDED BY: 

______________________________________________ 
John M. Lewis, Jr. 
Chief Executive Officer, Charlotte Area Transit System 
City of Charlotte Director of Public Transit 

61



RESOLUTION 
No. 2022-02 

ADOPTION OF THE FY2023 TRANSIT OPERATING BUDGET, FY2023 TRANSIT DEBT SERVICE 
BUDGET AND FY2023-2027 CAPITAL INVESTMENT PLAN 

A motion was made by Mayor Vi Lyles(City of Charlotte) and seconded by Mayor John Higdon (Town 
of Matthews) for the adoption of the following resolution, and upon being put to a vote was duly adopted 
by the Metropolitan Transit Commission (MTC). 

WHEREAS, The Amended Transit Governance Interlocal Agreement (11-28-2005) provides that 
the Chief Transit Official shall submit to the MTC by January 30 of each year a proposed transit budget 
and program delineating the public transit services, activities and programs to be undertaken in the 
upcoming fiscal year starting July 1, and the financial resources required to carry out the services, 
activities and programs, and 

WHEREAS, the Chief Transit Official provided budget and program recommendations to the 
MTC on January 26, 2022, which have been developed in compliance with CATS Mission, Vision, 
Strategic Goals and Financial and Fare Policies, and 

WHEREAS, the Chief Transit Official’s recommended budgets and programs have been 
reviewed by the Citizens Transit Advisory Group and the Transit Services Advisory Committee in 
accordance with the provisions of the Transit Governance Interlocal Agreement and the Metropolitan 
Transit Commission Rules of Procedures, and 

WHEREAS the Metropolitan Transit Commission has reviewed the recommended FY2023 
Transit Operating and Debt Service Budgets and Programs and the FY2023-2027 Capital Investment 
Plan and Projects to determine the transit program plans for meeting transportation needs of the 
Charlotte-Mecklenburg community, 

NOW THEREFORE, be it resolved that the Metropolitan Transit Commission hereby 

1. Approves the FY2023 Transit Operating Budget, the FY2023 Transit Debt Service Budget
and the FY2023-2027 Transit Capital Investment Plan (attached to this Resolution)

2. Authorizes Chief Transit Official to present the FY2023 Transit Operating Budget, the
FY2023 Debt Service Budget and the FY2023-2027 Capital Investment Plan to the Charlotte
City Council for their review, approval and inclusion in the City of Charlotte’s FY2023 Budget
Ordinance.

This resolution shall take effect immediately upon its adoption. 

I, Mecklenburg County Commissioner Leigh Altman, Chairwoman of the Metropolitan Transit 
Commission do hereby certify that the above Resolution is a true and correct documentation of the 
MTC’s action from their meeting duly held on April 27, 2022. 

_________________________________ 
Signature of MTC Chairperson 

62

tabwe
Stamp



63



April 27, 2022

To: The Chair and Members of the Metropolitan Transit Commission
Charlotte, North Carolina

I am pleased to present to you the CATS’ FY2023 Proposed Operating Budget and FY2023 Proposed
Debt Service Budget, which includes the Staffing Summary and Financial and Business Performance
Targets and the FY2023-2027 Capital Investment Plan (CIP) for the Charlotte Area Transit System
(CATS.) The balanced budget maintains current services and commitments with a focus on employee
safety, asset management and flexible mobility options.

CATS’ FY2023 Proposed Operating Budget is supported primarily by the transit sales tax, fare revenues,
service reimbursements, maintenance of effort, Coronavirus Disease 2019 (COVID-19) Funds,
operating and non-operating assistance from the Federal and State government and other
miscellaneous sources. The budget is balanced, meets CATS Financial performance objectives (unless
impacted by the COVID-19 pandemic) and delivers a variety of transportation options for the
community.

FY2023 Priorities:
The FY2023 budget reflects priorities in the Metropolitan Transit Commission’s approved Mission and 
Strategic Goals for CATS.

• Outstanding community-wide public transportation services
• Focused Regional Growth
• Safety and Accountability
• Safe, affordable mobility options to jobs, education and housing
• Contribution to economic development in the County and region
• Investment in employees

FY2023 Preliminary Operating Budget Highlights:

• Safety and Support Cost including Security Enhancements to support Bus, Rail, Streetcar,
Charlotte Transit Center (CTC) operations, recruitment and retention cost and funding for new
personnel.

• COVID-19 Relief funding for Transit will cover costs incurred as a result of the COVID-19
pandemic, including personal protective equipment, protective equipment on fleet, services,
excess operating expenses, preventive maintenance and mid-life overhaul expenses.

• New All Access Pass Agreements for Universities and colleges along the CityLYNX Goldline
corridor such as Johnson and Wales and Johnson C. Smith Universities and Central Piedmont
Community College.

Chief Executive Officer’s Transmittal Letter

FY 2023 Proposed Budget CEO’s Transmittal Letter | 1

64



FY2023 Proposed Capital Budget Highlights:

• State of Good Repair priorities including replacement of fixed-route diesel buses with fully
electric buses, Special Transportation Services (STS) buses and vanpool vehicles; and facility
upgrades and enhancements.

• Technology Upgrades to enhance delivery of transit services, asset & financial management,
including replacing the City’s Enterprise system, Access Control System Upgrade and
Automatic Vehicle Locator (AVL) replacement.

The FY2023 Operating and Capital Budget is mostly supported by an Increase in Sales Tax Revenue
and COVID-19 Relief funding. Though fare revenue has not returned to pre-pandemic levels the
overall cost of operations has increased due to supply chain issues, increased material cost and
the on-going need for fleet and facility maintenance. The capital program has also grown as the
City enters an agreement to update the current transit center that may cause CATS to temporarily
re-locate. CATS plans to continue to work with current funding sources to advance the 2030
Transit Corridor System Plan but will need significant new funding sources to advance through
completion.

Respectfully Submitted,

John M. Lewis, Jr.

Chief Executive Officer

CEO’s Transmittal Letter | 2

Chief Executive Officer’s Transmittal Letter

CEO’s Transmittal Letter | 2FY 2023 Proposed Budget
65



Executive Summary 4

Section I – Operating Budget 5

Section II  – Debt Service Budget 11

Section III - Revenue Reserve Fund 11

Section IV – Capital Investment Plan 12

Section V – Performance Objectives 15

Section VI – CATS Services and Ridership 16

Section VII – CATS At A Glance 17

Appendix 1 – Operating Budget Summary 19

Appendix 2 – Performance Objectives 20

Appendix 3 – Staffing Summary 22

Appendix 4 – Operating Budget 23

Appendix 5 – Debt Service Summary 25

Appendix 6 – Capital Revenue Summary; 
Capital Expenditure Summary & Detail

28

Appendix 7 – Grant-Funded Operating Projects 34

Appendix 8 – Other Capital Projects Managed by CATS 37

Appendix 9 – FY2023 Budget Schedule 39

Table of Contents | 3

Table of Contents

FY 2021 Proposed BudgetFY 2023 Proposed Budget
66



The budget reflects the continued effort to provide outstanding community-wide public transportation
services while proactively contributing to focused growth and sustainable regional development.

The FY2023 proposed operating budget totals $211.2 million and remains aligned with MTC approved
mission and strategic goals. The budget continues to reflects the impact of the current health
pandemic, estimated fare revenue decreases, and increased assistance from the Federal Government
for operations and maintenance.

CATS is projecting to contain operating cost in FY2022 as the pandemic continues and plans to
maintain expense controls through FY2023. Although fuel consumption reduced from prior year, the
average price slightly increased. Sales tax growth is expected to continue in FY2023. Additional
revenue from new pass agreements and COVID-19 relief funding are also expected in FY2023.

The FY2023 Capital Investment Plan (CIP) budget totals $280.9 million which includes projects such as
a Temporary Facility for the Charlotte Transit Center, State of Good Repair and Technology Upgrades.
The CIP plan is guided by the 2030 Transit Corridor System Plan, CATS’ financial policies and CATS’ long
range financial plan. The FY2023 Debt Service totals $18.1 million, a decrease from the prior year
amount of $62.1 million due to principal payments for temporary debts, debt payoffs and savings from
refinancing.

Executive Summary | 4

Executive Summary

FY 2021 Proposed BudgetFY 2023 Proposed Budget

*FY2023 Capital Budget includes carryover

BUDGET SUMMARY
FY2022 FY2023 Variance Variance

Amended
Budget

(millions)

Proposed Budget
(millions)

(millions) (%)

Operating Revenues 185.8$              211.2$  25.4$               13.7%
CATS Control Account - - -$                   0.0%
Total Operating Revenue 185.8$              211.2$  25.4$               13.7%

Operating Expenditures 185.8$              211.1$  25.3$               13.6%
Transfer to Capital - 0.1 0.1 0.1%
Total Operating Expenditures and Transfers 185.8$              211.2$  25.4$               13.7%

Debt Service Budget 62.1$                 18.1$  (44.0)$             -70.9%
Capital Budget* 245.4$              280.9$  35.5$               14.5%

67



Section I. Operating Budget | 5

I. OPERATING BUDGET
The FY2023 Proposed Operating Budget is $211.2 million.

Reference: Appendix 1

The FY2023 Proposed Operating Budget covers cost for transit provided by the City of Charlotte and
contracted employees. Approximately 57.8% (or $122.1 million) of the Operating Budget includes
Personnel Services with the remaining 42.2% covering other operating expenses (or $89.1 million.)

Direct services such as Bus, Rail, Streetcar, Special Transportation Services and Vanpool operations,
Vehicle and Track Maintenance, Facilities, Planning and Scheduling, Customer Service, Revenue
collections and Safety and Security account for 85.5% (or $180.6 million) of the Operating Budget.
Support services such as admin, marketing, technology, Human Resources and Civil Rights and
Development and other indirect services account for 14.5% (or $30.6 million) of the Operating Budget.

Budget Summary

FY 2021 Proposed BudgetFY 2023 Proposed Budget

*FY2023 Capital Budget includes carryover

BUDGET SUMMARY
FY2022 FY2023 Variance Variance

Amended
Budget

(millions)

Proposed Budget
(millions)

(millions) (%)

Operating Revenues 185.8$  211.2$  25.4$               13.7%
CATS Control Account - - -$                   0.0%
Total Operating Revenue 185.8$  211.2$  25.4$               13.7%

Operating Expenditures
Current Service Levels 185.7$  207.6$  21.9$               11.8%
Service Level Changes 0.1 3.5$  3.4$                 1.8%

Subtotal Operating Expenditures 185.8$  211.1$  25.3$               13.6%

Transfer to Capital - 0.1 0.1 0.1%

Total Operating Expenditures and Transfers 185.8$  211.2$  25.4$               13.7%

Debt Service Budget 62.1$  18.1$  (44.0)$             -70.9%
Capital Budget* 245.4$  280.9$  35.5$               14.5%

Total $211.2 million

68



Section I. Operating Budget | 6

A. Operating Revenues: $211.2 million
In FY2023, operating revenues are projected at $211.2 million, an increase of $25.4 million compared to
the FY2022 Amended Budget, which represents an increase of 13.7%.

Compared to the FY2022 Amended Budget Passenger Fare revenue will increase by $0.9 million as
demand for service increases. Despite an increase, Fare Revenue is not expected to reach pre-pandemic
levels in FY2023. Service Reimbursement and Transit Passes are expected to increased by $0.4 million.
The overall increase is a result of $1.5 million in new All Access passes for Johnson & Wales and Johnson
C. Smith Universities and Central Piedmont Community College and elimination of the Airport All Access
Pass and Lowe’s Agreement.

Service Income decreased by $3.4 million due to a significant adjustment for interest earnings and lease
income. Federal Operating Assistance increased by $7.3 million to support on-going operations and
direct expenses associated with the pandemic with the use of COVID-19 operating assistance funding to
ensure our system maintains a state of good repair throughout the pandemic.

Sales tax increased by $7.5 million as result of an increase in the trend-line resulting from growth in
CATS’ sales tax revenue. Non-Operating revenue increased by $10.9 million due to an increase in
available COVID-19 funding to be used for preventative maintenance cost. Other changes include a $0.7
million increase in Maintenance of Effort funding and $1.0 million for Goldline Operations, both funded
by the City of Charlotte.

The following chart identifies the sources of the $211.2 million in revenue that will fund the FY2023
operating programs.

Budget Summary

FY 2021 Proposed Budget

FY2023: Where the Money Comes From

FY 2023 Proposed Budget

Total $211.2 million

69



Budget Summary
Key changes in revenue in the FY2023 Proposed Operating Budget versus the FY2022 Amended 
Operating Budget are as follows:

Section I. Operating Budget | 7FY 2021 Proposed BudgetFY 2023 Proposed Budget

FY2022 FY2023 Variance Variance
Amended

Budget
(millions)

Proposed Budget
(millions)

(millions ) (%)

Operating Allocation 97.3$  104.8$  7.5$                 7.7%
The Operating Allocation increase reflects an updated sales tax
trendline due to a significant growth in sales tax revenue
Fare Revenues 12.5$  13.4$  0.9$                 7.1%
Fares are projected to increase as demand for service increase.  Despite 
the slight, increase Fare Revenue has not returned to pre-pandemic
levels

All Access Pass & Service Reimbursements 3.3$  3.7$  0.4$                 12.1%
New All Access (Johnson C Smith, Johnson & Wales, CPCC) passes
replenish passes that will not continue in FY2023 such as Lowe's and
Airport. In addition, slight increased revenue for service providers
based on increased operating cost.

Maintenance of Effort 24.0$  24.7$  0.7$                 2.9%
Maintenance of Effort are funds received from the City of Charlotte,
which are paid to CATS in compliance with state law. The City of
Charlotte increases its annual contribution by 3%.

Operating Assistance 5.6$  13.9$  8.3$                 148.2%
The increase is a combination of Federal COVID-19 Relief funding and
City of Charlotte funds for Goldline operations. Federal COVID-19
Relief Funding provides operating assistance to Transit Agencies to
help combat the impact of the current health pandemic. It covers
direct expenses such as PPE, social distancing equipment, cleaning
services in addition to a operating loss. The total increase for COVID-19
Relief funding is $7.3 million. Operating assistance from the City of
Charlotte will increase by $1.0 million for  Goldline operations. 

Other (Miscellaneous) 8.1$  4.8$  (3.3)$                -40.7%
Other Miscellaneous revenues include advertising, lease agreements
and interest earned. Interest earnings are expected to decrease by
$2.4 million based on prior year actuals and current trend. Advertising
decreased by $0.6 million and miscellanous income increased by $0.7
million due to bringing the advertising production and installation in
house. All cost is reimbursable from the client. Parking deck, Leases
and Private partner agreements are expected to decrease by a net
amount of $1.2 million.  
Non-Operating Revenue 35.0$  45.9$  10.9$               31.1%
COVID -19 Relief funding increased by $5.0 million as funding shifted
from Operating Assistance to Non-Operating Revenue ensuring the
system can remain in a state of good repair during the pandemic.
Grant Funded operating projects such as Preventive Maintenance,
anticipated grant awards for planning and studies such as Transit
Oriented Development, and Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP)
funding will increase by $5.9  million.  

Total Operating Budgetary Increases (Decreases) 185.8$  211.2$  25.4$               13.7%

Revenue Source

70



Section I. Operating Budget | 8

B. Operating Expenses: $211.2 million
In FY2023, operating expenses are projected at $211.2 million, an increase of $25.4 million
compared to the FY2022 Amended Budget, or 13.7% increase. This increase is primarily due to
personnel and maintenance costs. Personnel Services cost increased by $10.1 million due to
additional staff for administrative support and employee recruitment and retention cost. As the
system continues to grow funds have been heavily allocated for operation staff failing to consider
the increased amount of administrative support needed to maintain funding, hiring, planning,
technology and security. Maintenance costs increased by $7.2 million due to mid-life overhauls,
incremental S70 Overhauls for the light rail vehicles, on-going State of Good repair for Bus and
Special Transportation Services vehicles, operating cost for new electric fleet and the direct COVID
related expenses for social distancing requirements. Other operating expenses increased by $8.5
million due to security enhancements, MOUs for facility services, planning and development
services, streetcar operations, subrecipient funding, and shared city support cost. Fuel is expected to
decrease by $0.4 million in FY2023 due to lower consumption due to an increase in electric vehicles.

C. Operating Balance: $0.1 million
The Operating Balance is transferred to the capital program and provides a portion of the ‘matching
fund’ dollars required by federal and/or state grants as well as being programmed to fund capital
projects where grant funds are not available. In FY2023 the department will shift a portion to the
City’s capital account to fund the City’s planning grant program.

FY2023: Where the Money Goes

Budget Summary

FY 2021 Proposed BudgetFY 2023 Proposed Budget

Total $211.2 million

71



Section I. Operating Budget | 9

Key changes in expenses in the FY2023 Proposed Operating Budget versus the FY2022 Amended 
Operating Budget are as follows:

Budget Summary

FY 2021 Proposed BudgetFY 2023 Proposed Budget

Expenditure FY2022 FY2023 Variance Variance

 Amended Budget
(millions) 

 Proposed Operating 
Budget

(millions) 
 (millions) (%)

Personnel Services 112.0$  122.1$  10.1$               9.0%

Fuel 6.1$  5.7$  (0.4)$                -6.6%

Maintenance 15.8$  23.0$  7.2$                 45.6%

Other Operating Expense 51.9$  60.4$  8.5$                 16.4%

Total Operating Budgetary Increases (Decreases)  $ 185.8  $ 211.2  $               25.4 13.7%

Personnel Services increased due to the following:
'-Increases for Annual Merit
-Increase headcount by 31 positions to support operations and
administration.
-Overtime for Bus and Rail Operators due to the national shortage of
operators

Diesel fuel for Bus & STS Operations is forward purchased at
approximately $2.03/gallon in FY2023 for 2.6 gallons. In FY2022 it was
forward purchased at $1.80/gallon for 3.2 gallons. As a result of the
lower consumption  fuel is expected to decrease in FY2023.

Maintenance cost for Bus, STS, and Rail increased by $7.2 million due to
aging fleet and repairs, mid-life overhaul and COVID related cleaning
and PPE. 

Facility services increased by $2.9 million due to MOU increases, and
increased cost for building and maintenance repair such as a
stormwater reparis and carpet replacement at S. Tryon facility.
Planning and Scheduling increased by $1.3 million due to anticipated
Route Restoration planning grant, an automoous vehicle pilot program
with NCDOT and connect beyond rail trail studies. Development
increased by $1.0 million due to a an anticipated grant for Transit
Oriented Development and a modeling consultant for future
development. Marketing increased by $.08 million due changes in the
advertising program, to bring the installation and prodcution in house.
This cost is reimbursable by the vendor. Transit Security increased by
$2.0 million for CMPD MOU and contractual services such for police and
security along the Rail alignment, Bus Routes, Streetcar and Charlotte
Transportation Center (CTC). City Shared Cost increased by $0.5
million. CATS is responsible for paying a portion of City Cost related to
Administrative Support; Finance, Budget, Proucrement, Legal,
Communications and Technology.

72



Section I. Operating Budget | 10

D. Service Level Changes

The FY2023 Proposed Operating Budget includes service level changes totaling $3.5 million in 
additional personal cost for 31 additional City full-time equivalent (FTE) positions:

E. Staffing

The FY2023 Proposed Operating Budget provides for 610.75 full-time equivalent (FTE) positions,
which includes 31 additional City full-time equivalent (FTE) position. A staffing summary by section
can be found in Appendix 3.

Budget Summary

FY 2021 Proposed Budget

(The area of this page intentionally left blank.)

FY 2023 Proposed Budget

Section Position FTE Additional Budget
411010- Admin AOIV 1               115,108$                  
411010- Admin Management Analyst 1               105,130 
413001- Development Senior Engineer- Bus Infrastructure 1               132,028 
413001- Development Senior Project Manager- Goldline Phase 3 1               158,806 
418010- Planning and  Scheduling Transportation Planner II- Scheduling Sr 1               115,108 
414010- Marketing & Communications Marketing Rep 1               91,872 
414030- Technology Applications Adminstrator 1               120,475 
414030- Technology Technology Support Specialist 1               87,868 
416010- Rail Chief Rail Controllers 2               219,994 
416010- Rail Rail Controllers 3               329,992 
416011- Rail Admin Transit Asset Management Position 1               115,108 
416011- Rail Admin Administrative Officer II 1               91,872 
416011- Rail Admin Administrative Officer III 1               84,053 
416011- Rail Admin Transit Energy Analyst 1               91,872 
416011- Rail Admin Maintenance Training Supervisor 1               115,108 
416011- Rail Admin Safety Training Supervisor 1               115,108 
416011- Rail Admin Transit Energy Coordinator 1               120,475 
416011- Rail Admin Training Specialist 3               315,389 
416012- Rail Car Maintenance Rail Car Maintenance Shift Managers 2               289,528 
417010- Safety & Security Safety Coordinator 3               329,992 
417010- Safety & Security Safety Coordinator- Senior 1               120,475 
419010- HR AO III 2               200,988 

31            3,466,349$               

73



Section II. Debt Service Budget | 11

II. DEBT SERVICE BUDGET

A. Debt Service Revenues: $18.1 million
No new debt financing is planned for FY2023. Key sources of revenue for payment of the current
debt expenses are federal and state grants and the transit sales tax (local).

Debt financing proceeds are utilized to fund CATS’ capital investment projects.

B. Debt Service Expenses: $18.1 million
Debt service expenses include principal and interest costs on project financings, together with fees
and miscellaneous costs associated with capital financings.

In FY2023, debt service expenses are as follows:
• $18.0 million is for principal and interest payments shown below
• $ 0.1 million covers miscellaneous fees

Reference: Appendix 5

III. REVENUE RESERVE FUND

In 2016, the MTC approved the revision of CATS’ Financial Policies, which created a CATS Control
Account. This account receives sales tax revenue in excess of the sales tax trend line only when the
balance in the Revenue Reserve Fund has reached the maximum required balance of $30 million.

The Revenue Reserve Fund (RRF) reached the required balance of $30 million in FY2017. Therefore,
the projected FY2023 $16.8 million of sales tax dollars that would have been deposited into this
fund will transfer directly to the CATS Control Account. In accordance with Section 3.3 of MTC
Financial Policies MTC-01, “the Transit CEO may recommend use of such funds, for operating or
capital programs, to the Metropolitan Transit Commission as a part of the CEO Recommended
Budget in January of each year.”

Budget Summary

FY 2021 Proposed BudgetFY 2023 Proposed Budget

Federal -$  
State -$  
Local 8.3$  

Blue Line & Transit Facilities Local 6.1$  
Federal 3.0$  
Local 0.7$  

Total FY2023 Proposed Debt Service 18.1$  

Blue Line Extension

South Tryon Bus Garage

Project Source of Funding
FY2023

Principal & Interest
(millions)

74



Section IV. Capital Investment Plan  | 12

IV. CAPITAL INVESTMENT PLAN (CIP)

CATS’ $377.9 million five-year CIP is prioritized to continue the system’s State of Good Repair by
replacing vehicles, facility upgrades and enhancements, and technology upgrades. The breakout of
CIP revenues and expenses over five years is shown below:

Note:
Excludes Grant-Funded Operating Projects

A. Capital Revenues: $377.9 million
Revenues for CATS’ five-year capital program include funds from federal and state grants, transit
sales tax and private funding.

The FY2023 through FY2027 CATS’ capital program consists of the following:

• $92.3 million from federal grants including Federal Formula, Surface Transportation Block Grant,
and Bus and Bus Facilities funding.

• $7.6 million from state grants including the Urban State Matching funds for vehicle purchases
and Strategic Transportation Investment (STI) funding.

• $44.1 million from transit sales tax (transfer from the operating balance, CATS Control Account
and CATS Fund Balance).

• $233.8 million in carryover project balances to continue existing projects.

Budget Summary

FY 2021 Proposed BudgetFY 2023 Proposed Budget

Sources of Funds FY2023 FY2024 FY2025 FY2026 FY2027 Total
Grants- Federal 25,233,161$   19,281,862$ 14,274,362$ 16,499,538$ 17,046,329$ 92,335,252$   
Grants-State 2,512,798       1,126,781     1,145,322     1,302,802     1,559,108     7,646,811       
Local 1/2% Sales Tax 17,638,789     5,869,509     4,900,250     2,981,636     11,033,209   42,423,393     
Re-allocated from 
Prior Year Savings- Local 1,721,201       - - - - 1,721,201       

Carry Over Projects-Federal 153,230,596   - - - - 153,230,596   
Carry Over Projects-State 11,126,422     - - - - 11,126,422     
Carry Over Projects-Private 2,959,592       - - - - 2,959,592       
Carry Over Projects-Soft Match 7,284,509       - - - - 7,284,509       
Carry Over Projects-Local 59,152,976     - - - - 59,152,976     
Total 280,860,044$ 26,278,152$ 20,319,934$ 20,783,976$ 29,638,646$ 377,880,752$ 

CAPITAL EXPENDITURES FY2023 FY2024 FY2025 FY2026 FY2027 Total
State of Good Repair- Vehicle 
Replacement

19,666,943$   21,905,699$ 13,383,086$ 15,591,085$ 24,556,365$ 95,103,178$   

State of Good Repair- Facilities & 
Others

1,800,000       1,625,000     1,351,000     1,079,000     1,570,000     7,425,000       

Transit Safety & Security 348,897          326,136        2,396,339     686,339        736,339        4,494,050       
Transit Long Range Capital 
Improvement

18,947,054     200,000        250,000        250,000        - 19,647,054     

Non-Revenue Vehicle 390,530          650,740        70,000          833,212        1,319,942     3,264,424       
Transit New Equipment 5,952,525       1,570,577     2,869,509     2,344,340     1,456,000     14,192,951     
Carry Over Projects 233,754,095   - - - - 233,754,095   
Total 280,860,044$ 26,278,152$ 20,319,934$ 20,783,976$ 29,638,646$ 377,880,752$ 

75



Section IV. Capital Investment Plan  | 13

B. Capital Expenditures: $377.9 million
CATS’ five-year capital investment plan key expenses include the following:

Notes:
1. Excludes Covid Operating Assistance and Grant-Funded Operating Projects totaling $134.5 million for FY2023 –

FY2027

Budget Summary

FY 2021 Proposed BudgetFY 2023 Proposed Budget

State of Good Repair - Vehicle Replacements
Replacement of revenue service vehicles that have reached the end of their useful
life. In FY2023 CATS will replace 16 Buses, 11 Special Transportation Services
vehicles, and 9 Vanpool vehicles for the Vanpool program.

95,103,178$                
State of Good Repair - Facilities and Others
Replacement, upgrades or repair of transit assets including renovations/repairs of
transit facilities to comply with federal Transit Asset Management guidelines.

7,425,000 
Transit Safety & Security
Programs and projects to advance safe, reliable, and equitable transit service
throughout the system including camera replacements and dispatch upgrades.

4,494,050 
Transit Long Range Capital Improvement
Design services for rapid transit, rail, bus, streetcar and facility improvements to
better serve the region. Projects include ADA enhancements, design and
construction of the Hambright Park and Ride Lot and Transit Center, and a
temporary bus facility.

19,647,054                  
Transit Non-Revenue Vehicles
Purchase and replacement of non-revenue vehicles for supervisory staff,
maintenance and repair calls.

3,264,424 
Transit New Equipment
The purchase of new equipment essential to the bus and rail divisions and
technology upgrades.

14,192,951                  
Carry Over Projects
Continued funding for existing capital projects.

233,754,095                
Total 5-year Capital Investment Plan 1 377,880,752$              

Capital Program/Project FY2023-FY2027 Total

76



Section IV. Capital Investment Plan  | 14

CAPITAL PROGRAMS MANAGED BY CATS

CATS manages two (2) transit capital investment programs which receive funds from the federal and
state governments and the City of Charlotte.

The Charlotte Gateway Station – Rail Project (Phase I)

The Charlotte Gateway Station (CGS) Project is a planned multi-modal transit center located in 
Center City Charlotte. 

The City of Charlotte and the North Carolina Department of Transportation (NCDOT) are partners in
the phased implementation of this project which:
• Improves both regional (Amtrak) passenger rail service and regional freight rail operations

through the construction of track and bridge improvements.
• Includes a future multi-modal passenger station facility, the completion of which will mark the

return of Amtrak service to Uptown Charlotte, with supporting modal connections to CityLYNX
Goldline, regional bus connections and CATS local bus routes.

Design and engineering of the first phase of the project is underway, and construction of the initial
track and bridge improvements began in 2018. Phase I is being funded with federal, state and City
of Charlotte (local) funds.

The CityLYNX Goldline Streetcar Project – Phase II

The CityLYNX Goldline Streetcar Project - Phase II is an extension of the approximately 1.5 mile
CityLYNX Goldline Phase I project completed in July 2015. Phase II consists of the design and
construction of approximately 2.5 miles of double-track in-street running streetcar line. The final
project results in a total of approximately a 4-mile long double-track streetcar system which extends
from Johnson C. Smith University through Center City Charlotte, to Novant Health and Sunnyside
Avenue.

The project was funded by a federal small starts grant and an American Rescue Plan Act funding for
a total of $84.2 million and with a local match of $77.0 million funded by the City of Charlotte.
CityLYNX Goldline Streetcar opened for service in August 2021.

Budget Summary

FY 2021 Proposed BudgetFY 2023 Proposed Budget

Reference: Appendix 8

77



Section V. Performance Objectives  | 15

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE OBJECTIVES

CATS Financial Policies provide guidelines on how financial resources shall be utilized to fulfill the
mission of the transit system, meet obligations and to protect the public interest.

CATS TRAX SCORECARD OBJECTIVES

CATS Trax is a quarterly performance scorecard that provides employees, customers, elected
officials, and the general public with a snapshot of how we are doing at a high level. Metrics are
aligned with CATS goals and customer satisfaction index.

Customer Satisfaction Index
• Measures how well we are doing as related to customer’s top drivers of satisfaction
• Allows customers to choose and prioritize what is most important to them
• Gauges performance relative to the customer’s priorities and perceptions
• Helps highlight priorities for improvement

Performance Objectives

FY 2021 Proposed Budget

(The area of this page intentionally left blank.)

(The area of this page intentionally left blank.)

FY 2023 Proposed Budget
78



Section VI. Services & Ridership | 16

CATS’ SERVICES AND RIDERSHIP

CATS is anticipating to provide approximately 11.4 million rides in FY2023 on its bus, light rail,
streetcar, vanpool and Special Transportation Services vehicles.

The Goldline Phase II extension opened August 2021 and provides an additional 2.5 miles of service
from Sunnyside Avenue through Center City and terminates at French Street near Johnson C. Smith
University. Having opened during the pandemic ridership is expected to gradually increase over the
next two years.

Blue Line Extension continues to attract ridership and is expected to slightly increase in FY2023 as
development around the alignment continues to grow and existing businesses re-open at full
capacity. Customers wholly new to transit are also expected to contribute to an increase in light rail
ridership as ridership matures over the first few years of operations.

The FY2023 budget reflects revenue hours on track to full service (pre-pandemic) despite the low
ridership numbers. As the department expects ridership to return to pre-pandemic levels (or
greater) at some point it is important to keep revenue hours at a certain level.

CATS’ Services and Ridership

FY 2021 Proposed BudgetFY 2023 Proposed Budget

FY2022 FY2023 FY2024 FY2022 FY2023 FY2024
Projected Proposed Budget Estimated Projected Proposed Budget Estimated

Bus 6,456,736    7,102,410                  8,167,771    745,562     800,177 852,502            
Light Rail 3,215,592    3,537,151                  4,067,724    118,076     131,812 141,548            
Streetcar 383,922       482,645 555,042       9,137         18,275 18,275              
Vanpool 37,536          41,290 47,483          17,462       18,384 19,305              
Special Transportation Svc. 219,396       230,366 241,884       121,123     131,126 141,129            
Total 10,313,182 11,393,862                13,079,904 1,011,360 1,099,774                  1,172,759        

Mode
Ridership Revenue Service Hours

79



Section VII. CATS At A Glance | 17

The City provides additional support to CATS through a City Cost Allocation Plan. 

CATS At A Glance

FY 2021 Proposed BudgetFY 2023 Proposed Budget

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICE
Sets strategic direction for the department and manages the overall  operation and administration, including budgeting, 

training, coordinating with City Manager’s office and support of the Metropolitan Transit Commission

BUS / STS / VANPOOL

Provides transit services in the City of Charlotte, and
in the Towns of Cornelius, Davidson, Huntersville,
Matthews, Mint Hill , and Pinevil le.

FINANCE & PROCUREMENT

Manage all fiscal aspects and procurements for
transit operations and capital projects including
budget, grants, debt financing, revenue collections &
financial reporting

LIGHT RAIL / STREETCAR

Provides a light rail service with over 19 miles and 26
stations from just north of the town of Pinevil le to the
UNC Charlotte campus. CityLYNX Gold Line Phase 2
provides services through Center City Charlotte.

DEVELOPMENT & PLANNING

Responsible for planning and construction of transit
projects including quality control and assurance of all
project developments

SAFETY & SECURITY

Responsible for safety & security of all CATS
amenities, facilities and individuals that come in
contact with CATS

FACILITIES

Manage and maintain light rail stations, park & ride
lots, parking decks, bus garages, light rail facilities,
transit centers, and bus stops

CUSTOMER SERVICE,
MARKETING & TECHNOLOGY

Manage public relations, customer service requests,
trip planning assistance and technology for transit
operations

HUMAN RESOURCE &
CIVIL RIGHTS

Oversee compliance with federal, state & local
guidelines to ensure fair and equal treatment of
customers and employees

80



Appendices | 18

Appendices

FY 2021 Proposed BudgetFY 2023 Proposed Budget

Appendix 1 - Operating Budget Summary

Appendix 2 - Performance Objectives
Financial Performance Objectives
Balanced Scorecard: CATS TRAX

Appendix 3 - Staffing Summary

Appendix 4 - Operating Budget
Operating Revenues
Operating Expenditures

Appendix 5 - Debt Service Summary
Debt Service Revenue Details
Debt Service Expenditure Details

Appendix 6 - Capital Revenue & Expenditures
5-year Capital Revenue & Expenditure Summary
5-year Capital Expenditure Details including Carryover

Appendix 7 - Grant-Funded Operating Projects
Federal Grant-Funded Operating Projects
State Grant-Funded Operating Projects

Appendix 8 - Other Capital Projects Managed by CATS
Charlotte Gateway Station
CityLYNX Goldline Phase II

Appendix 9 - FY2023 Budget Schedule

APPENDICES

81



Appendices | 19

Appendix 1 – Operating Budget Summary

FY 2021 Proposed BudgetFY 2023 Proposed Budget

FY2020 FY2021 FY2022 FY2022 FY2023

Actuals 
Actuals
Audited

Amended
Budget

Year-End 
Projection

Proposed 
Budget 

Sales Tax Allocation
A Sales Tax Receipts 107,778,981$    116,669,192$    133,470,264$         133,470,264$    136,807,021$    
B  Less Sales Tax Trendline (97,000,000)       (105,201,000)    (114,252,020)         (114,252,020)    (120,000,475)    

A - B = C Net Difference 10,778,981$      11,468,192$      19,218,244$           19,218,244$      16,806,546$      

Sales Tax Available for Allocation:
D Transfer to (from) Revenue Reserve -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  
E Transfer to Debt Service Fund 17,667,788        16,975,589        16,939,110             16,939,110        15,168,881        
F Transfer to Operating Fund (Operating Alloc) 79,332,212        88,225,410        97,312,910             97,312,910        104,831,594      
G CATS Control Account 10,778,981        11,468,192        19,218,244             19,218,244        16,806,546        

D + E + F + G= I Sales Tax Allocation to Other Funds 107,778,981$    116,669,192$    133,470,264$         133,470,264$    136,807,021$    
Operating Fund

Revenues:
Operating Revenues:

Sales Tax Operating Allocation 79,332,212$      88,225,411$      97,312,910$           97,312,910$      104,831,594$    
Fares and Service Reimbursements 21,028,419        11,113,790        15,767,931             15,767,931        17,015,602        
Maintenance of Effort - Charlotte 22,629,679        23,308,600        24,007,826             24,007,826        24,728,061        
Operating Assistance 6,528,812           24,928,652        5,579,802                5,579,802           13,917,567        
CATS Control Account - - - - - 
Other (Advertising, Misc) 5,621,239           (1,112,534)         8,153,918                8,153,918           4,764,204           
Subtotal 135,140,361$    146,463,919$    150,822,387$         150,822,387$    165,257,028$    

Non-Operating Revenue 24,253,043        14,702,805        35,014,560             35,014,560        45,948,561        

Total Operating Revenues 159,393,404$    161,166,724$    185,836,947$         185,836,947$    211,205,589$    

Operating Expenditures
Transportation Services 142,016,893$    141,970,655$    158,931,571$         158,931,571$    180,629,952$    
Transit Development 3,705,109           4,005,534           5,382,272                5,382,272           6,760,505           
Marketing and Communications 3,086,973           3,567,664           6,073,403                6,073,403           6,346,175           
Executive and Administration 11,227,571        11,586,995        15,449,701             15,449,701        17,368,958        
Subtotal 160,036,546$    161,130,848$    185,836,947$         185,836,947$    211,105,589$    

Transfers to Eligible CIP Projects (1,139,477)         (590,405)             - - - 

Total Net Operating Expense 158,897,069$    160,540,443$    185,836,947$         185,836,947$    211,105,589$    

Transfer from Operating to CIP 981,600              -                            - - 100,000              

Total Operating Expenditures 159,878,669$    160,540,443$    185,836,947$         185,836,947$    211,205,589$    

Excess (Shorftall) Revenue over Expenses (485,265)$          626,282$            -$  -$  -$  

Proposed Operating Budget Summary

82



Appendices | 20

Appendix 2 – Performance Objectives

Notes:

1) In the FY2023 Proposed Budget the total Operating Expense used to calculate System Subsidy, Operating
Ratio and Net Debt Service Coverage does not include $1,917,083 in pass through funding for
subrecipient projects.

2) In FY2022 ridership and fares are expected to significantly decline due to the COVID-19 pandemic causing
the agency to rely on other sources of revenue to continue operations.  The decline is expected to
continue in FY2023.  As a result, the system subsidy exceeds the 80% threshold.

1

2

FY 2021 Proposed BudgetFY 2023 Proposed Budget

FY2020 FY2021 FY2022 FY2022 FY2023

Actuals  Actuals
Amended 

Budget
Year End 

Projection
Proposed Budget

SYSTEM SUBSIDY
≤ 80% of Total Operating Cost 83.1% 93.8% 87.1% 86.9% 89.5%

OPERATING RATIO (W/O Capital Interest) 16.9% 6.2% 12.9% 13.1% 10.5%
(≥ 20%)
PASSENGERS PER HOUR
   (Bus ≥ 20 passengers per hour) 12.7 8.6 12.6 8.7 8.9
   (Light Rail ≥ 90 passengers per hour) 97.4 44.4 72.7 52.8 47.8

ADMINISTRATIVE OVERHEAD 11.1% 13.13% 15.37% 14.90% 14.49%
   (≤ 15%)

GROSS DEBT SERVICE COVERAGE 5.74 6.15 7.76 7.76 9.1
(> 3.0)

NET DEBT SERVICE COVERAGE
(≥ 1.15) 1.52 1.47 1.92 2.01 2.06

Performance Objectives

Financial Performance Objectives

83



Appendices | 21

Appendix 2 – Performance Objectives

FY 2021 Proposed BudgetFY 2023 Proposed Budget
84



Appendices | 22

Appendix 3 – Staffing Summary

FY 2021 Proposed BudgetFY 2023 Proposed Budget

Approved 
in FY2022

Transfers Reductions FY2023  SLC TOTAL FTES

Bus Operations Division (BOD) Employees
Transportation Services
415010 BOD - Operations 644.00 -                 -                 - 644.00 -                 
415011 BOD - Administration 14.00 -                 -                 - 14.00 -                 
415012 BOD - Maintenance 178.00 -                 -                 - 178.00 -                 
415013 BOD -  STS Maintenance 9.00 -                 -                 - 9.00 -                 
Subtotal BOD Employees 845.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 845.00 -                 

City Employees
Transportation Services
415050 Special Transportation Services 131.75        -                 -                 - 131.75           -                 
411060 Treasury/Revenues 12.00          -                 -                 - 12.00             -                 
412020 Facilities 14.00          -                 -                 - 14.00             -                 
414020 Customer Svc & Information 21.00          -                 -                 - 21.00             -                 
416010 Light Rail Operations 89.00          -                 -                 5.00 94.00             -                 
416011 Light Rail Administration 19.00          2.00               - 9.00 30.00             -                 
416012 Light Rail Maintenance 72.00          -                 -                 2.00 74.00             -                 
416013 Maintenance of Way 51.00          (2.00)              -                 - 49.00             -                 
416020 CityLYNX GoldLine 38.00          -                 -                 - 38.00             -                 
417010 Transit Security 20.00          -                 -                 4.00 24.00             -                 
415001 Bus General Management 4.00            -                 -                 - 4.00               -                 
418010 Planning And Scheduling 11.00          -                 -                 1.00 12.00             -                 
415040 Van Pool Division 4.00            -                 -                 - 4.00               -                 
Transit Development
413001 Development Administration 22.00          -                 -                 3.00 25.00             -                 
413002 Quality Assurance 6.00            -                 -                 - 6.00               -                  
Marketing & Communications
414010 Marketing & Communications 14.00 -                 -                 1.00 15.00             -                 
414030 Technology 16.00 -                 -                 2.00 18.00             -                 

Executive & Administration 
411010 Administration Division 22.00          -                 -                 2.00 24.00             1.00               
419010 HR and Civil Rights 11.00          -                 -                 2.00 13.00             -                 
411040 Executive Division 2.00            -                 -                 - 2.00               -                 
Subtotal City Employees 579.75 0.00 0.00 31.00 610.75 1.00

Total Employees 1,424.75 0.00 0.00 31.00 1,455.75 1.00

FY2023 Staffing Levels
FTE

Temps

85



Appendices | 23

Appendix 4 – Operating Budget

Operating Revenues

FY 2021 Proposed BudgetFY 2023 Proposed Budget

FY2020 FY2021 FY2022 FY2022 FY2023

Actuals Audited Actuals
Amended

Budget
Year End 

Projection
Proposed

Budget
Service Passenger Fares

Bus 14,683,327$            6,993,617$           7,748,083$  7,748,083$             8,522,892$  
Light Rail 2,730,923                1,032,650              3,344,216 3,344,216                3,678,637 
Streetcar - - 740,000 740,000 482,645 
Vanpool 372,328 195,739 110,356 110,356 121,393 
Paratransit 549,072 423,111 537,520 537,520 564,397 
Subtotal 18,335,650$            8,645,117$           12,480,175$                 12,480,175$           13,369,964$                

All Access Pass
All Access Pass- Johnson and Wales -$  -$  -$  -$  75,000$  
All Access Pass- Johnson C Smith - - - 55,000 
All Access Pass- CPCC - - - 925,000 
CMGS 514,567 514,345 484,787 484,787 518,568 
Lowe's Agreement - - 175,000 175,000 - 
Airport All Access Pass - 572,000 870,584 870,584 - 
UNCC Pass Purchases 1,347,612                1,344,175 1,400,000 1,400,000                1,330,866 
Subtotal 1,862,179$              2,430,520$           2,930,371$  2,930,371$             2,904,434$  

Service Reimb & Funding Partners
Airport Connector Services 200,000$                  (200,000)$             -$  -$  -$  
Fort Mill (WellsFargo) Rt 44 Carowinds 7,791 (675) - - - 
Union County Express 74x 131,724 98,144 94,458 94,458 180,221 
Rock Hill Express Commuter Bus 155,341 104,554 74,491 74,491 270,224 
Gastonia Express Commuter Bus 177,702 152,931 82,236 82,236 270,800 
Carowinds (N&BS U MYEP) 102,102 (48,500) 97,800 97,800 - 
DSS 3,265 - 8,400 8,400 8,400 
Ramsey Creek Beach Park 52,665 (68,301) - - 11,559 
Subtotal 830,590$                  38,153$                 357,385$  357,385$                 741,204$  

Service Income
Charlotte Transit Center 465,436$                  414,789$               479,398$  479,398$                 397,867$  
Advertising 2,846,062                (75,643) 2,469,160 2,469,160                1,831,999 
Parking - BLE Decks - - 391,000 391,000 119,650 
Parking - CGS 104,005 251,398 98,004 98,004 98,004 
Volkswagen Parking Lease 26,214 36,706 26,214 26,214 30,000 
Parking Lease-Norfolk Southern Land 213,030 - 438,842 438,842 99,972 
Lowe's Agreement (Naming Rights) - - 310,500 310,500 - 
Interest Earnings 1,234,108                (2,231,887)            3,302,194 3,302,194                941,000 
Agreements/Leases 40,115 19,119 29,227 29,227 14,033 
User Fees for Development Reviews - 103,951 223,929 223,929 281,118 
Miscellaneous 692,269 369,033 385,450 385,450 950,561 
Subtotal 5,621,239$              (1,112,534)$          8,153,918$  8,153,918$             4,764,204$  

Sales Tax Revenue
Operating Allocation 79,332,212$            88,225,411$         97,312,910$                 97,312,910$           104,831,594$              
CATS Control Account
Subtotal 79,332,212$            88,225,411$         97,312,910$                 97,312,910$           104,831,594$              

Maintenance of Effort
City of Charlotte 22,629,679$            23,308,600$         24,007,826$                 24,007,826$           24,728,061$                
Subtotal 22,629,679$            23,308,600$         24,007,826$                 24,007,826$           24,728,061$                

Operating Assistance
Federal CMAQ (for Service Expansions) 4,595,535$              1,727,122$           -$  -$  -$  
City of Charlotte - GoldLine Operations 1,471,896                3,090,755              3,679,257 3,679,257                4,702,069 
COVID-19 255,686 20,131,377           1,900,545 1,900,545                9,215,498 
NCDOT (I-77 Mitigation) 82,085 - - - - 
Sugar Creek (I-77 Mitigation) 123,610 (20,602) - - - 
Subtotal 6,528,812$              24,928,652$         5,579,802$  5,579,802$             13,917,567$                

Non Operating Revenue
Grant Funded Operating Expenses - Fed 14,304,879$            14,352,641$         5,751,445$  5,751,445$             9,765,069$  
Grant Funded Operating Expenses -COVID 19 - - 19,581,655 19,581,655             24,560,581 
Grant Funded Operating Expenses - State 145,986 138,656 225,247 225,247 348,198 
State Maintenance Assist. Prog. (SMAP) 9,590,670                - 9,208,761 9,208,761                11,063,205 
Mecklenburg County - 192,942 192,942 192,942 192,942 
Town of Huntersville 211,508 18,566 18,566 18,566 18,566 
City of Charlotte-TOD Match - - 30,235 30,235 - 
Gastonia-TOD Match - - 3,959 3,959 - 
Belmont-TOD Match - - 1,750 1,750 - 
Subtotal 24,253,043$            14,702,805$         35,014,560$                 35,014,560$           45,948,561$                

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES 159,393,404$         161,166,724$       185,836,947$               185,836,947$         211,205,589$              86



Appendices | 24

Appendix 4 – Operating Budget

Operating Expenses

FY 2021 Proposed BudgetFY 2023 Proposed Budget

FY2020 2021 FY2022 FY2022 FY2023

Actuals
Actuals
Audited

Amended
Budget

Year End 
Projection

Proposed 
Budget

Transportation Services
411060 Treasury/Revenues 1,290,993$            849,965$                1,430,198$            1,430,198$            1,297,491$       
412010 Transit Center Operations 1,079,388               1,053,663               1,023,944               1,023,944               1,023,944         
412020 Facilities 7,996,344               7,783,174               8,009,463               8,009,463               10,860,788       
414020 Customer Svc & Information 1,826,679               1,489,280               2,346,463               2,346,463               2,001,482         
415001 Bus General Management 438,110                  399,208                  590,720                  590,720                  571,862             
415010 BOD - Operations 60,275,656            59,999,797            58,829,232            58,829,232            60,451,302       
415011 BOD - Administration 2,427,012               2,477,129               2,596,229               2,596,229               2,716,790         
415012 BOD - Maintenance 20,529,509            19,648,868            22,587,326            22,587,326            24,403,234       
415013 BOD -  STS Maintenance 935,651                  844,147                  1,221,476               1,221,476               1,058,609         
415020 County Human Svc Transp 303,265                  300,000                  310,000                  310,000                  310,000             
418010 Planning And Scheduling 1,436,929               1,330,628               1,591,621               1,591,621               2,833,770         
415040 Van Pool Division 580,581                  596,089                  717,880                  717,880                  722,168             
415050 Special Transportation Svc 8,843,960               8,720,583               9,947,800               9,947,800               11,256,443       
416010 Light Rail Operations 11,681,669            11,211,254            13,440,412            13,440,412            14,301,271       
416011 Light Rail Administration 1,679,533               1,841,880               2,341,733               2,341,733               4,076,553         
416012 Light Rail Maintenance 5,266,192               8,791,983               11,488,521            11,488,521            19,155,087       
416013 Maintenance of Way 4,732,491               4,074,712               5,485,877               5,485,877               6,524,654         
416020 CityLYNX GoldLine 1,170,161               2,071,743               4,449,989               4,449,989               5,184,714         
417010 Transit Security 9,520,707               8,486,552               10,522,687            10,522,687            11,879,790       
Subtotal 142,014,830$        141,970,655$        158,931,571$        158,931,571$        180,629,952$  

Executive & Administration 
411010 Administration Division 1,880,046$            2,705,149$            2,859,633$            2,859,633$            3,192,591$       
411020 Procurement Services 215,259                  145,839                  237,987                  237,987                  163,367             
419010 HR & Civil Rights 1,542,905               678,398                  2,235,039               2,235,039               25,918               
419010 HR - - - - 712,159             
419020 Civil Rights - - - - 2,401,089         
411040 Executive Division 868,793                  493,345                  852,770                  852,770                  1,046,698         
411050 MTC & Committees Division 67,885 61,836 76,850 76,850 76,850               
411070 City Support Costs 6,565,659               7,502,428               9,187,422               9,187,422               9,750,285         
Subtotal 11,140,547$          11,586,995$          15,449,701$          15,449,701$          17,368,958$     

Transit Development
413001 Development 2,072,881$            2,673,430$            4,630,601$            4,630,601$            5,700,652$       
413002 Quality Assurance 582,745                  741,699                  751,671                  751,671                  1,059,853         
Subtotal 2,655,626$            3,415,128$            5,382,272$            5,382,272$            6,760,505$       

Marketing & Technology
414010 Marketing & Communications 1,489,068$            1,391,754$            1,959,234$            1,959,234$            2,491,555$       
414030 Technology 1,596,998               2,175,910               4,114,169               4,114,169               3,854,620         
Subtotal 3,086,066$            3,567,664$            6,073,403$            6,073,403$            6,346,175$       

Transfer to Capital 981,600$                -$  -$  -$  100,000 

Total Operating Expenditures 159,878,669$        160,540,442$        185,836,947$        185,836,947$        211,205,589$  

87



Appendices | 25

Appendix 5 – Debt Service Summary

FY 2021 Proposed BudgetFY 2023 Proposed Budget

FY2021 FY2022 FY2023
Audited 
Actuals

Adopted
Budget

Proposed
Budget

REVENUES
Federal Grants-BLE 1,726,061$        619,900$            -$  
Federal Grants- Non-BLE 2,920,059           2,929,440           2,929,475             
State Grants-BLE 863,031              41,637,850        - 
State Grants-Non-BLE - - - 
Local Sales Tax 99,178,654        16,939,110        15,168,881          
Interest on Investments 35,502                 - - 

TOTAL REVENUES 104,723,308$    62,126,300$      18,098,356$        

EXPENDITURES
Principal Payments-BLE 85,791,094$      45,424,000$      3,368,581$          
Principal Payments-Non-BLE 5,555,000           5,790,000           5,551,419             
Interest Payments-BLE 8,729,031           6,410,600           4,944,119             
Interest Payments-Non-BLE 4,600,920           4,387,700           4,120,237             
Other Payments 47,263                 114,000              114,000                
Transfers to Other - - - 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 104,723,308$    62,126,300$      18,098,356$        

FY2023 FY2024 FY2025 FY2026 FY2027 FY2023-FY2027
Proposed

Budget
Plan Plan Plan Plan Total

REVENUES
Federal Grants- Non-BLE 2,929,475$  2,927,875$        2,925,675$        2,927,275$          2,929,515$     14,639,815$             
State Grants-BLE - - - - - - 
State Grants-Non-BLE - - - - - - 
Local Sales Tax 15,168,881 15,169,091        15,158,431        15,166,671          15,161,391     75,824,466               
Interest on Investments - - - - - - 

TOTAL REVENUES 18,098,356$  18,096,966$      18,084,106$      18,093,946$        18,090,906$   90,464,282$             

EXPENDITURES
Principal Payments-BLE 3,368,581$  3,539,221$        3,712,347$        3,899,259$          4,093,488$     18,612,896$             
Principal Payments-Non-BLE 5,551,419 5,825,779           6,107,653           6,395,741             6,686,512        30,567,104               
Interest Payments-BLE 4,944,119 4,773,979           4,598,603           4,411,441             4,218,462        22,946,604               
Interest Payments-Non-BLE 4,120,237 3,843,987           3,551,503           3,273,505             2,978,444        17,767,678               
Other Payments 114,000 114,000              114,000              114,000                114,000           570,000 
Transfers to Other - - - - - - 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 18,098,356$  18,096,966$      18,084,106$      18,093,946$        18,090,906$   90,464,282$             

88



Ap
pe

nd
ic

es
 |

 2
6

Ap
pe

nd
ix

 5
 –

De
bt

 S
er

vi
ce

 D
et

ai
ls

FY
 2

02
3 

Pr
op

os
ed

 B
ud

ge
t

FY
20

23
FY

20
24

FY
20

25
FY

20
26

FY
20

27
FY

20
23

-F
Y2

02
7

BL
E 

= 
Bl

ue
 Li

ne
 E

xt
en

sio
n

Pr
op

os
ed

 
Bu

dg
et

Pl
an

Pl
an

Pl
an

Pl
an

TO
TA

L

De
bt

 S
er

vi
ce

 R
ev

en
ue

 D
et

ai
ls

RE
VE

N
U

ES
   B

LE
- C

O
PS

 P
rin

cip
al

 O
nl

y
    

  F
ed

er
al

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

    
  S

ta
te

- 
- 

- 
- 

- 
- 

    
  L

oc
al

- 
- 

- 
- 

- 
- 

    
  S

ub
to

ta
l

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 

   B
LE

 - 
CO

PS
 In

te
re

st
 O

nl
y

    
  F

ed
er

al
 (5

0%
)

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

    
  S

ta
te

 (2
5%

)
- 

- 
- 

- 
- 

- 
    

  L
oc

al
 (2

5%
)

- 
- 

- 
- 

- 
- 

    
  S

ub
to

ta
l

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

   B
LE

 - 
TI

FI
A 

O
nl

y 
- P

rin
cip

al
 &

 In
te

re
st

    
  F

ed
er

al
 (0

%
)

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

    
  S

ta
te

 (0
%

)
- 

- 
- 

- 
- 

- 
    

  L
oc

al
 (1

00
%

)
8,

31
2,

70
0

 
8,

31
3,

20
0

 
8,

31
0,

95
0

 
8,

31
0,

70
0

 
8,

31
1,

95
0

 
41

,5
59

,5
00

 
    

  S
ub

to
ta

l
8,

31
2,

70
0

$ 
    

    
8,

31
3,

20
0

$ 
    

    
  

8,
31

0,
95

0
$ 

    
    

  
8,

31
0,

70
0

$ 
    

    
  

8,
31

1,
95

0
$ 

    
    

  
41

,5
59

,5
00

$ 
    

 

   N
on

-B
LE

 - 
Pr

in
cip

al
 &

 In
te

re
st

    
  2

01
3C

 C
O

PS
    

  F
ed

er
al

 (8
0%

)
2,

92
9,

47
5

$ 
    

    
2,

92
7,

87
5

$ 
    

    
  

2,
92

5,
67

5
$ 

    
    

  
2,

92
7,

27
5

$ 
    

    
  

2,
92

9,
51

5
$ 

    
    

  
14

,6
39

,8
15

$ 
    

 
    

  S
ta

te
 (0

%
)

- 
- 

- 
- 

- 
- 

    
  L

oc
al

 (2
0%

)
73

2,
36

9
 

73
1,

96
9

 
73

1,
41

9
 

73
1,

81
9

 
73

2,
37

9
 

3,
65

9,
95

4
 

    
  S

ub
to

ta
l

3,
66

1,
84

4
$ 

    
    

3,
65

9,
84

4
$ 

    
    

  
3,

65
7,

09
4

$ 
    

    
  

3,
65

9,
09

4
$ 

    
    

  
3,

66
1,

89
4

$ 
    

    
  

18
,2

99
,7

69
$ 

    
 

- 
    

  2
00

8A
 C

O
PS

 (1
00

%
 Lo

ca
l)

1,
84

1,
95

0
$ 

    
    

1,
84

5,
31

0
$ 

    
    

  
1,

84
1,

70
0

$ 
    

    
  

1,
84

5,
29

0
$ 

    
    

  
1,

84
0,

70
0

$ 
    

    
  

9,
21

4,
95

0
$ 

    
   

20
15

B 
CO

PS
 (1

00
%

 Lo
ca

l)
4,

16
7,

86
3

 
4,

16
4,

61
3

 
4,

16
0,

36
3

 
4,

16
4,

86
3

 
4,

16
2,

36
3

 
20

,8
20

,0
63

 
O

th
er

 (1
00

%
 Lo

ca
l)

11
4,

00
0

 
11

4,
00

0
 

11
4,

00
0

 
11

4,
00

0
 

11
4,

00
0

 
57

0,
00

0
 

    
  S

ub
to

ta
l

6,
12

3,
81

3
$ 

    
    

6,
12

3,
92

3
$ 

    
    

  
6,

11
6,

06
3

$ 
    

    
  

6,
12

4,
15

3
$ 

    
    

  
6,

11
7,

06
3

$ 
    

    
  

30
,6

05
,0

13
$ 

    
 

TO
TA

L R
EV

EN
U

ES
18

,0
98

,3
56

$ 
    

 
18

,0
96

,9
66

$ 
    

    
18

,0
84

,1
06

$ 
    

    
18

,0
93

,9
46

$ 
    

    
18

,0
90

,9
06

$ 
    

    
90

,4
64

,2
82

$ 
    

 

89



Ap
pe

nd
ic

es
 |

 2
7

Ap
pe

nd
ix

 5
 –

De
bt

 S
er

vi
ce

 D
et

ai
ls

FY
 2

02
3 

Pr
op

os
ed

 B
ud

ge
t

FY
20

23
FY

20
24

FY
20

25
FY

20
26

FY
20

27
FY

20
23

-F
Y2

02
7

BL
E 

= 
Bl

ue
 Li

ne
 E

xt
en

sio
n

Pr
op

os
ed

 
Bu

dg
et

Pl
an

Pl
an

Pl
an

Pl
an

TO
TA

L

De
bt

 S
er

vi
ce

 E
xp

en
di

tu
re

 D
et

ai
ls

PR
IN

CI
PA

L
   B

lu
e 

Lin
e 

Ex
te

ns
io

n
    

  2
01

3B
 C

O
PS

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

    
  2

01
3F

 C
O

PS
- 

- 
- 

- 
- 

- 
    

  2
01

5D
 T

IF
IA

    
 2

02
1A

 C
O

PS
 ( 

TI
FI

A 
RE

F 
PO

RT
IO

N
)

3,
36

8,
58

1
 

3,
53

9,
22

1
 

3,
71

2,
34

7
 

3,
89

9,
25

9
 

4,
09

3,
48

8
 

18
,6

12
,8

96
 

    
  S

ub
to

ta
l

3,
36

8,
58

1
$ 

    
    

3,
53

9,
22

1
$ 

    
    

  
3,

71
2,

34
7

$ 
    

    
  

3,
89

9,
25

9
$ 

    
    

  
4,

09
3,

48
8

$ 
    

    
  

18
,6

12
,8

96
$ 

    
 

   N
on

-B
lu

e 
Lin

e 
Ex

te
ns

io
n

    
  2

02
1A

 C
O

PS
 ( 

20
08

A 
RE

F 
PO

RT
IO

N
)

74
6,

41
9

$ 
    

    
   

78
5,

77
9

$ 
    

    
    

  
82

2,
65

3
$ 

    
    

    
  

86
5,

74
1

$ 
    

    
    

  
90

6,
51

2
$ 

    
    

    
  

4,
12

7,
10

4
$ 

    
   

    
  2

00
8A

 C
O

PS
    

  2
01

3C
 C

O
PS

2,
34

0,
00

0
 

2,
45

5,
00

0
 

2,
57

5,
00

0
 

2,
68

0,
00

0
 

2,
79

0,
00

0
 

12
,8

40
,0

00
 

    
  2

01
5B

 C
O

PS
2,

46
5,

00
0

 
2,

58
5,

00
0

 
2,

71
0,

00
0

 
2,

85
0,

00
0

 
2,

99
0,

00
0

 
13

,6
00

,0
00

 
    

  S
ub

to
ta

l
5,

55
1,

41
9

$ 
    

    
5,

82
5,

77
9

$ 
    

    
  

6,
10

7,
65

3
$ 

    
    

  
6,

39
5,

74
1

$ 
    

    
  

6,
68

6,
51

2
$ 

    
    

  
30

,5
67

,1
04

$ 
    

 

IN
TE

RE
ST

   B
lu

e 
Lin

e 
Ex

te
ns

io
n 

-T
IF

IA
 O

nl
y

    
 2

01
3B

 C
O

PS
    

 2
02

1A
 C

O
PS

 ( 
TI

FI
A 

RE
F 

PO
RT

IO
N

)
4,

94
4,

11
9

$ 
    

    
4,

77
3,

97
9

$ 
    

    
  

4,
59

8,
60

3
$ 

    
    

  
4,

41
1,

44
1

$ 
    

    
  

4,
21

8,
46

2
$ 

    
    

  
22

,9
46

,6
04

$ 
    

 
    

  S
ub

to
ta

l
4,

94
4,

11
9

$ 
    

    
4,

77
3,

97
9

$ 
    

    
  

4,
59

8,
60

3
$ 

    
    

  
4,

41
1,

44
1

$ 
    

    
  

4,
21

8,
46

2
$ 

    
    

  
22

,9
46

,6
04

$ 
    

 

   N
on

-B
lu

e 
Lin

e 
Ex

te
ns

io
n

    
  2

02
1A

 C
O

PS
 ( 

20
08

A 
RE

F 
PO

RT
IO

N
)

1,
09

5,
53

1
$ 

    
    

1,
05

9,
53

1
$ 

    
    

  
1,

01
9,

04
7

$ 
    

    
  

97
9,

54
9

$ 
    

    
    

  
93

4,
18

8
$ 

    
    

    
  

5,
08

7,
84

6
$ 

    
   

    
  2

01
3C

 C
O

PS
1,

32
1,

84
4

 
1,

20
4,

84
4

 
1,

08
2,

09
4

 
97

9,
09

4
 

87
1,

89
4

 
5,

45
9,

76
9

 
    

  2
01

5B
 C

O
PS

1,
70

2,
86

3
 

1,
57

9,
61

3
 

1,
45

0,
36

3
 

1,
31

4,
86

3
 

1,
17

2,
36

3
 

7,
22

0,
06

3
 

    
  S

ub
to

ta
l

4,
12

0,
23

7
$ 

    
    

3,
84

3,
98

7
$ 

    
    

  
3,

55
1,

50
3

$ 
    

    
  

3,
27

3,
50

5
$ 

    
    

  
2,

97
8,

44
4

$ 
    

    
  

17
,7

67
,6

78
$ 

    
 

IN
TE

RE
ST

    
  O

th
er

 F
ee

s
11

4,
00

0
$ 

    
    

   
11

4,
00

0
$ 

    
    

    
  

11
4,

00
0

$ 
    

    
    

  
11

4,
00

0
$ 

    
    

    
  

11
4,

00
0

$ 
    

    
    

  
57

0,
00

0
$ 

    
    

   
    

  S
ub

to
ta

l
11

4,
00

0
$ 

    
    

   
11

4,
00

0
$ 

    
    

    
  

11
4,

00
0

$ 
    

    
    

  
11

4,
00

0
$ 

    
    

    
  

11
4,

00
0

$ 
    

    
    

  
57

0,
00

0
$ 

    
    

   

TO
TA

L E
XP

EN
DI

TU
RE

S
18

,0
98

,3
56

$ 
    

 
18

,0
96

,9
66

$ 
    

    
18

,0
84

,1
06

$ 
    

    
18

,0
93

,9
46

$ 
    

    
18

,0
90

,9
06

$ 
    

    
90

,4
64

,2
82

$ 
    

 

90



Appendices | 28

Appendix 6 –Capital Revenue & Expenditure Summary

Notes:
1. Excludes Covid Operating Assistance and Grant-Funded Operating Projects totaling $134.5 million for FY2023 –

FY2027

FY 2021 Proposed BudgetFY 2023 Proposed Budget

FY2023 FY2024 FY2025 FY2026 FY2027 Total
Proposed 

Budget
Plan Plan Plan Plan

FY2023 - 
FY2027

CAPITAL REVENUES
Federal Funding

Formula Apportionment 15,708,143$      17,067,135$      12,059,635$      14,284,811$      14,831,602$      73,951,326$      
Federal Surface Transportation Block Grant (STBG) 7,310,291          - - - 7,310,291          
Bus & Bus Facilities 2,214,727          2,214,727          2,214,727          2,214,727          2,214,727          11,073,635        
Total Federal Funding 25,233,161$      19,281,862$      14,274,362$      16,499,538$      17,046,329$      92,335,252$      

State Funding
Urban Match State Grants 1,050,740$        1,126,781$        1,145,322$        1,302,802$        1,559,108$        6,184,753$        
Strategic Transportation Investment (STI) 1,462,058          - - - - 1,462,058          
Total  State Funding 2,512,798$        1,126,781$        1,145,322$        1,302,802$        1,559,108$        7,646,811$        

Local Funding
      CATS Control Account 17,638,789$      5,869,509$        4,900,250$        2,981,636$        11,033,209$      42,423,393$      
      Re-allocated from Prior Year Savings- Local 1,721,201          - - - - 1,721,201          
      Total Local Funding 19,359,990$      5,869,509$        4,900,250$        2,981,636$        11,033,209$      44,144,594$      

Carryover Project Balance
    Continue Existing Projects- Federal 153,230,596$   -$  -$  -$  -$  153,230,596$   
    Continue Existing Projects- State 11,126,422        - - - - 11,126,422        
    Continue Existing Projects- Private 2,959,592          - - - - 2,959,592          

7,284,509          - - - - 7,284,509          
    Continue Existing Projects- Local 59,152,976        - - - - 59,152,976        
    Total Continue Existing Projects 233,754,095$   -$  -$  -$  -$  233,754,095$   

Total Capital Revenues 1 280,860,044$   26,278,152$      20,319,934$      20,783,976$      29,638,646$      377,880,752$   

    Continue Existing Projects- Short Term Debt/Soft Match

FY2023 FY2024 FY2025 FY2026 FY2027 Total
Proposed 

Budget
Plan Plan Plan Plan

FY2023 - 
FY2027

CAPITAL EXPENDITURES
State of Good Repair- Vehicle Replacement 19,666,943$      21,905,699$      13,383,086$      15,591,085$      24,556,365$      95,103,178$      

State of Good Repair- Facilities & Others 1,800,000          1,625,000          1,351,000          1,079,000          1,570,000          7,425,000          

Transit Safety & Security 348,897              326,136              2,396,339          686,339              736,339              4,494,050          

18,947,054        200,000              250,000              250,000              - 19,647,054 
390,530              650,740              70,000                833,212              1,319,942          3,264,424 

Transit New Equipment 5,952,525          1,570,577          2,869,509          2,344,340          1,456,000          14,192,951 
Carry Over Projects 233,754,095      - - - - 233,754,095 

Total Capital Expenditures 1 280,860,044$   26,278,152$      20,319,934$      20,783,976$      29,638,646$      377,880,752$   

Transit Long Range Capital Improvement
Non-Revenue Vehicle

91



Ap
pe

nd
ic

es
 |

 2
9

Ap
pe

nd
ix

 6
 –

Ca
pi

ta
l E

xp
en

di
tu

re
 D

et
ai

ls

FY
 2

02
3 

Pr
op

os
ed

 B
ud

ge
t

FY
20

23
FY

20
24

FY
20

25
FY

20
26

FY
20

27
FY

20
23

 - 
FY

20
27

Pr
op

os
ed

Bu
dg

et
 P

la
n

 P
la

n
 P

la
n

 P
la

n
 T

O
TA

L

St
at

e 
of

 G
oo

d 
Re

pa
ir-

 V
eh

ic
le

 R
ep

la
ce

m
en

t
Bu

s R
ep

la
ce

m
en

ts
Bu

s
An

nu
al

 B
us

 R
ep

la
ce

m
en

ts
 p

er
 y

ea
r 

Av
er

ag
e 

co
st

 in
cl

ud
es

 co
st

 o
f c

am
er

as
 a

nd
 p

la
nt

 v
is

its
FY

23
: R

ep
la

ce
 1

6 
Bu

se
s @

 $
1,

09
4,

37
4 

FY
24

: R
ep

la
ce

 1
7 

Bu
se

s @
 $

1,
12

7,
20

5 
ea

ch
 

FY
25

: R
ep

la
ce

 9
 B

us
es

 @
 $

1,
16

1,
02

1 
ea

ch
F Y

26
: R

ep
la

ce
 1

1 
Bu

se
s @

 $
1,

19
5,

85
2 

ea
ch

FY
27

: R
ep

la
ce

 1
0 

Bu
se

s @
 $

1,
23

1,
72

8 
ea

ch

17
,5

22
,2

53
$ 

    
    

  
19

,6
93

,7
89

$ 
    

    
  

11
,1

04
,8

22
$ 

    
    

  
13

,1
54

,3
73

$ 
    

    
  

12
,3

17
,2

80
$ 

    
    

  
73

,7
92

,5
17

$ 
    

    
    

 

ST
S 

Re
pl

ac
em

en
ts

ST
S

An
nu

al
 S

TS
 R

ep
la

ce
m

en
ts

 p
er

 y
ea

r
Av

er
ag

e 
co

st
 in

cl
ud

es
 co

st
 o

f c
am

er
as

 a
nd

 p
la

nt
 v

is
its

 
FY

23
: R

ep
la

ce
 1

1 
Bu

se
s @

 $
16

4,
80

0 
ea

ch
FY

24
: R

ep
la

ce
 1

1 
Bu

se
s  

@
 $

16
9,

74
4 

ea
ch

FY
25

: R
ep

la
ce

 1
1 

Bu
se

s  
@

 $
17

4,
83

6 
ea

ch
F Y

26
: R

ep
la

ce
 1

1 
Bu

se
s  

@
 $

20
0,

00
0 

ea
ch

FY
27

: R
ep

la
ce

 1
7 

Bu
se

s @
20

6,
00

0 
ea

ch

1,
81

2,
80

0
    

    
    

   
1,

86
7,

18
4

    
    

    
   

1,
92

3,
19

6
    

    
    

   
2,

20
0,

00
0

    
    

    
   

3,
50

2,
00

0
    

    
    

   
11

,3
05

,1
80

$ 
    

    
    

 

Va
np

oo
l R

ep
la

ce
m

en
ts

Va
np

oo
l

An
nu

al
 V

an
po

ol
 R

ep
la

ce
m

en
ts

 p
er

 y
ea

r
Av

er
ag

e 
co

st
 in

cl
ud

es
 ca

m
er

as
 a

nd
 p

la
nt

 v
is

its
FY

23
: R

ep
la

ce
 9

 v
an

s @
 $

36
,8

77
 e

ac
h 

(t
w

o 
15

-p
as

se
ng

er
 a

nd
 se

ve
n 

7-
pa

ss
en

ge
r)

FY
24

: R
ep

la
ce

 9
 m

in
iv

an
s @

 $
38

,3
03

 e
ac

h
FY

25
: R

ep
la

ce
 9

 m
in

iv
an

s @
 $

39
,4

52
 e

ac
h

F Y
26

: R
ep

la
ce

 6
 m

in
iv

an
s @

 $
39

,4
52

 e
ac

h
FY

27
: R

ep
la

ce
 1

0 
m

in
iv

an
s @

 $
40

,6
35

 e
ac

h

33
1,

89
0

    
    

    
    

   
34

4,
72

6
    

    
    

    
   

35
5,

06
8

    
    

    
    

   
23

6,
71

2
    

    
    

    
   

40
6,

35
0

    
    

    
    

   
1,

67
4,

74
6

$ 
    

    
    

    

El
ec

tr
ic

 V
eh

ic
le

 C
ha

rg
er

s
Fa

ci
lit

ie
s

Pu
rc

ha
se

 5
2 

EV
 C

ha
rg

er
s @

 1
60

,2
06

 e
ac

h
- 

- 
- 

- 
8,

33
0,

73
5

    
    

    
   

8,
33

0,
73

5
$ 

    
    

    
    

Su
bt

ot
al

19
,6

66
,9

43
$ 

    
    

  
21

,9
05

,6
99

$ 
    

    
  

13
,3

83
,0

86
$ 

    
    

  
15

,5
91

,0
85

$ 
    

    
  

24
,5

56
,3

65
$ 

    
    

  
95

,1
03

,1
78

$ 
    

    
    

 
St

at
e 

of
 G

oo
d 

Re
pa

ir-
 F

ac
ili

tie
s &

 O
th

er
s

En
vi

si
on

 M
y 

Ri
de

 B
us

 S
he

lte
rs

Fa
ci

lit
ie

s
Re

pl
ac

e 
an

d/
or

 U
pd

at
e 

CA
TS

 b
us

 st
op

 a
m

en
iti

es
 to

 e
nh

an
ce

 cu
st

om
er

 e
xp

er
ie

nc
e

50
0,

00
0

$ 
    

    
    

    
50

0,
00

0
$ 

    
    

    
    

50
0,

00
0

$ 
    

    
    

    
50

0,
00

0
$ 

    
    

    
    

-
$

 
2,

00
0,

00
0

$ 
    

    
    

    
Dr

ai
na

ge
 Im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
Fa

ci
lit

ie
s

Dr
ai

na
ge

 Im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

50
0,

00
0

    
    

    
    

   
52

5,
00

0
    

    
    

    
   

55
1,

00
0

    
    

    
    

   
57

9,
00

0
    

    
    

    
   

- 
2,

15
5,

00
0

$ 
    

    
    

    
So

ut
h 

Co
rr

id
or

 Li
gh

tin
g 

Up
gr

ad
es

Fa
ci

lit
ie

s
Cr

iti
ca

l l
ig

ht
in

g 
fo

r S
ou

th
 C

or
rid

or
 a

lig
nm

en
t

30
0,

00
0

    
    

    
    

   
30

0,
00

0
    

    
    

    
   

30
0,

00
0

    
    

    
    

   
- 

- 
90

0,
00

0
$ 

    
    

    
    

   
LE

D 
Li

gh
tin

g 
Up

gr
ad

es
Fa

ci
lit

ie
s

Ra
il 

&
 B

us
 F

ac
ili

ty
 LE

D 
Li

gh
tin

g 
Up

gr
ad

es
30

0,
00

0
    

    
    

    
   

30
0,

00
0

    
    

    
    

   
- 

- 
- 

60
0,

00
0

$ 
    

    
    

    
   

Co
nt

in
ge

nc
y 

fo
r F

ac
ili

tie
s P

ro
je

ct
s

Fa
ci

lit
ie

s
Co

nt
ig

en
cy

 fo
r P

ro
je

ct
s

20
0,

00
0

    
    

    
    

   
- 

- 
- 

- 
20

0,
00

0
$ 

    
    

    
    

   
S.

Tr
yo

n
&

S.
Bo

ul
ev

ar
d

Li
gh

t
Ra

il
Fa

ci
lit

y 
Bo

ile
r R

ep
la

ce
m

en
ts

Fa
ci

lit
ie

s
Im

pr
ov

e 
en

er
gy

 co
ns

um
pt

io
n 

an
d 

re
du

ce
 m

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 co

st
s w

ith
 b

oi
le

r r
ep

la
ce

m
en

t 
pr

oj
ec

t
- 

- 
- 

- 
45

0,
00

0
    

    
    

    
   

45
0,

00
0

$ 
    

    
    

    
   

N
. D

av
id

so
n 

IT
 A

C 
Re

pl
ac

em
en

t
Fa

ci
lit

ie
s

Re
pl

ac
em

en
t o

f I
T 

ro
om

 m
in

i s
pl

it 
sy

st
em

s u
se

d 
to

 su
pp

or
t c

om
pu

te
r e

qu
ip

m
en

t
- 

- 
- 

- 
12

0,
00

0
    

    
    

    
   

12
0,

00
0

$ 
    

    
    

    
   

S.
 T

ry
on

 G
en

er
at

or
 R

ep
la

ce
m

en
ts

Fa
ci

lit
ie

s
Re

pl
ac

e 
cu

rr
en

t g
en

er
at

or
 w

ith
 a

 n
ew

 d
ie

se
l p

ow
er

ed
 g

en
er

at
or

- 
- 

- 
- 

50
0,

00
0

    
    

    
    

   
50

0,
00

0
$ 

    
    

    
    

   
So

la
r P

an
el

 A
dd

iti
on

s
Fa

ci
lit

ie
s

Re
du

ce
 o

ve
ra

ll 
en

er
gy

 co
st

s w
ith

 so
la

r p
an

el
 a

dd
iti

on
s f

or
 b

us
 ca

no
py

- 
- 

- 
- 

50
0,

00
0

    
    

    
    

   
50

0,
00

0
$ 

    
    

    
    

   
Su

bt
ot

al
1,

80
0,

00
0

$ 
    

    
    

1,
62

5,
00

0
$ 

    
    

    
1,

35
1,

00
0

$ 
    

    
    

1,
07

9,
00

0
$ 

    
    

    
1,

57
0,

00
0

$ 
    

    
    

7,
42

5,
00

0
$ 

    
    

    
    

Tr
an

si
t S

af
et

y 
&

 S
ec

ur
ity

BL
E 

Ca
m

er
as

Sa
fe

ty
 &

 S
ec

ur
ity

Re
pl

ac
e 

ca
m

er
as

 a
lo

ng
 th

e 
al

ig
nm

en
t

22
3,

89
7

$ 
    

    
    

    
22

6,
13

6
$ 

    
    

    
    

35
0,

00
0

$ 
    

    
    

    
35

0,
00

0
$ 

    
    

    
    

40
0,

00
0

$ 
    

    
    

    
1,

55
0,

03
3

$ 
    

    
    

    
Ac

ce
ss

Co
nt

ro
l

Fi
re

Pa
ne

l
Re

pl
ac

em
en

t
Sa

fe
ty

 &
 S

ec
ur

ity
Re

pl
ac

e 
fir

e 
pa

ne
ls

 w
ith

in
 C

AT
S 

ac
ce

ss
 co

nt
ro

l e
qu

ip
m

en
t

50
,0

00
 

25
,0

00
 

10
,0

00
 

- 
- 

85
,0

00
$

 

Gu
ar

d 
Sh

ac
ks

/B
ol

la
rd

s
Sa

fe
ty

 &
 S

ec
ur

ity
Ad

d
gu

ar
d

sh
ac

ks
at

va
rio

us
CA

TS
fa

ci
lit

ie
s

an
d

Pa
rk

N
Ri

de
lo

ca
tio

ns
an

d
bo

lla
rd

sa
t

CA
TS

 F
ac

ili
tie

s a
nd

 a
lo

ng
 th

e 
al

ig
nm

en
t

75
,0

00
 

75
,0

00
 

- 
- 

- 
15

0,
00

0
$ 

    
    

    
    

   

Ac
ce

ss
 C

on
tr

ol
 S

ys
te

m
 U

pg
ra

de
Sa

fe
ty

 &
 S

ec
ur

ity
Re

pl
ac

e
ol

d
an

d
ou

td
at

ed
le

ga
cy

sy
st

em
s

w
ith

in
CA

TS
ac

ce
ss

co
nt

ro
le

qu
ip

m
en

ta
nd

es
ta

bl
is

h 
on

-g
oi

ng
 a

ss
et

 m
an

ag
em

en
t f

or
 th

es
e 

sy
st

em
s

- 
- 

1,
70

0,
00

0
    

    
    

   
- 

- 
1,

70
0,

00
0

$ 
    

    
    

    

M
ob

ile
 V

id
eo

 R
ep

la
ce

m
en

t
Sa

fe
ty

 &
 S

ec
ur

ity
Re

pl
ac

e/
up

gr
ad

e 
m

ob
ile

 v
id

eo
 ca

m
er

as
 o

n 
ra

il,
 fi

xe
d 

ro
ut

e 
bu

s a
nd

 S
TS

 v
eh

ic
le

s
- 

- 
33

6,
33

9
    

    
    

    
   

33
6,

33
9

    
    

    
    

   
33

6,
33

9
    

    
    

    
   

1,
00

9,
01

7
$ 

    
    

    
    

Su
bt

ot
al

34
8,

89
7

$ 
    

    
    

    
32

6,
13

6
$ 

    
    

    
    

2,
39

6,
33

9
$ 

    
    

    
68

6,
33

9
$ 

    
    

    
    

73
6,

33
9

$ 
    

    
    

    
4,

49
4,

05
0

$ 
    

    
    

    

92



Ap
pe

nd
ic

es
 |

 3
0

Ap
pe

nd
ix

 6
 –

Ca
pi

ta
l E

xp
en

di
tu

re
 D

et
ai

ls

FY
 2

02
3 

Pr
op

os
ed

 B
ud

ge
t

FY
20

23
FY

20
24

FY
20

25
FY

20
26

FY
20

27
FY

20
23

 - 
FY

20
27

Pr
op

os
ed

Bu
dg

et
 P

la
n

 P
la

n
 P

la
n

 P
la

n
 T

O
TA

L

Tr
an

si
t L

on
g 

Ra
ng

e 
Ca

pi
ta

l I
m

pr
ov

em
en

t
AD

A
De

ve
lo

pm
en

t
Im

pl
em

en
t

co
rr

ec
tio

ns
,

en
ha

nc
em

en
ts

an
d

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

re
qu

ire
d

un
de

r
AD

A
ba

se
d 

on
 th

e 
re

su
lts

 fr
om

 th
e 

2-
ye

ar
 A

DA
 A

ss
es

sm
en

t
20

0,
00

0
$ 

    
    

    
    

20
0,

00
0

$ 
    

    
    

    
25

0,
00

0
$ 

    
    

    
    

25
0,

00
0

$ 
    

    
    

    
-

$
 

90
0,

00
0

$ 
    

    
    

    
   

Ha
m

br
ig

ht
 P

ar
k 

&
 R

id
e 

Lo
t a

nd
 

Tr
an

si
t C

en
te

r
De

ve
lo

pm
en

t
De

si
gn

 a
nd

 co
ns

tr
uc

tio
n 

at
 H

am
br

ig
ht

 R
oa

d 
an

d 
I-7

7 
in

 H
un

te
rs

vi
lle

, N
C

9,
74

7,
05

4
    

    
    

   
- 

- 
- 

- 
9,

74
7,

05
4

$ 
    

    
    

    

CT
C 

Te
m

po
ra

ry
 F

ac
ili

ty
De

ve
lo

pm
en

t
Te

m
po

ra
ry

 T
ra

ns
it 

Fa
ci

lit
y 

w
hi

le
 cu

rr
en

t C
TC

 is
 u

pd
at

ed
9,

00
0,

00
0

    
    

    
   

- 
- 

- 
- 

9,
00

0,
00

0
$ 

    
    

    
    

Su
bt

ot
al

18
,9

47
,0

54
$ 

    
    

  
20

0,
00

0
$ 

    
    

    
    

25
0,

00
0

$ 
    

    
    

    
25

0,
00

0
$ 

    
    

    
    

-
$

 
19

,6
47

,0
54

$ 
    

    
    

 
Tr

an
si

t N
on

-R
ev

en
ue

 V
eh

ic
le

N
on

-R
ev

en
ue

 V
eh

ic
le

:
Bu

s O
pe

ra
tio

ns
 (B

O
D)

Bu
s

An
nu

al
 re

pl
ac

em
en

t p
er

 y
ea

r:
FY

23
: R

ep
la

ce
 5

 n
on

-r
ev

en
ue

 v
eh

ic
le

s @
 $

28
,7

90
 e

ac
h

FY
24

: R
ep

la
ce

 5
 n

on
-r

ev
en

ue
 v

eh
ic

le
s @

 $
30

,2
40

 e
ac

h
FY

26
: R

ep
la

ce
 2

 n
on

-r
ev

en
ue

 v
eh

ic
le

s @
 $

32
,0

81
 e

ac
h

FY
27

: R
ep

la
ce

 1
 n

on
-r

ev
en

ue
 v

eh
ic

le
 @

 $
33

,4
33

 e
ac

h

14
3,

95
0

$ 
    

    
    

    
15

1,
20

0
$ 

    
    

    
    

-
$

 
64

,1
62

$ 
    

    
    

    
  

33
,4

33
$ 

    
    

    
    

  
39

2,
74

5
$ 

    
    

    
    

   

N
on

-R
ev

en
ue

 V
eh

ic
le

:
Bu

s M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 (B
O

D)
Bu

s
An

nu
al

 R
ep

la
ce

m
en

t p
er

 y
ea

r:
FY

23
: R

ep
la

ce
 1

 n
on

-r
ev

en
ue

 v
eh

ic
le

 @
 $

79
,8

00
 e

ac
h

79
,8

00
 

- 
- 

- 
- 

79
,8

00
$

 

N
on

-R
ev

en
ue

 V
eh

ic
le

:
ST

S 
De

pa
rt

m
en

t
Bu

s
An

nu
al

 R
ep

la
ce

m
en

t p
er

 y
ea

r:
FY

23
: R

ep
la

ce
 2

 n
on

-r
ev

en
ue

 v
eh

ic
le

s @
 $

53
,3

90
 e

ac
h

FY
24

: R
ep

la
ce

 2
 n

on
-r

ev
en

ue
 v

eh
ic

le
s @

 $
54

,7
70

 e
ac

h
FY

27
: R

ep
la

ce
 3

 n
on

-r
ev

en
ue

 v
eh

ic
le

s @
 $

80
,0

00
 e

ac
h

10
6,

78
0

    
    

    
    

   
10

9,
54

0
    

    
    

    
   

- 
- 

24
0,

00
0

    
    

    
    

   
45

6,
32

0
$ 

    
    

    
    

   

N
on

-R
ev

en
ue

 V
eh

ic
le

:
Fa

ci
lit

ie
s M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
Bu

s
An

nu
al

 R
ep

la
ce

m
en

t p
er

 y
ea

r:
FY

23
: R

ep
la

ce
 2

 n
on

-r
ev

en
ue

 v
eh

ic
le

s @
 $

30
,0

00
 e

ac
h

FY
24

: R
ep

la
ce

 2
 n

on
-r

ev
en

ue
 v

eh
ic

le
s @

 $
30

,0
00

 e
ac

h
FY

27
: R

ep
la

ce
 n

on
-r

ev
en

ue
 v

eh
ic

le
s 2

 @
 $

35
,8

21
 e

ac
h 

an
d 

1 
@

 $
10

0,
00

0

60
,0

00
 

60
,0

00
 

- 
- 

17
1,

64
3

    
    

    
    

   
29

1,
64

3
$ 

    
    

    
    

   

N
on

-R
ev

en
ue

 V
eh

ic
le

:
Sa

fe
ty

 &
 S

ec
ur

ity
Bu

s
Ve

hi
cl

e 
Ex

pa
ns

io
n:

FY
24

: P
ur

ch
as

e 
4 

no
n-

re
ve

nu
e 

ve
hi

cl
es

 @
 $

45
,0

00
 e

ac
h

- 
18

0,
00

0
 

- 
- 

- 
18

0,
00

0
$ 

    
    

    
    

   

N
on

-R
ev

en
ue

 V
eh

ic
le

:
Sa

fe
ty

 &
 S

ec
ur

ity
Bu

s
An

nu
al

 R
ep

la
ce

m
en

t p
er

 y
ea

r:
FY

24
: R

ep
la

ce
 3

 n
on

-r
ev

en
ue

 v
eh

ic
le

s  
@

 $
50

,0
00

 e
ac

h
FY

26
: R

ep
la

ce
 9

 n
on

-r
ev

en
ue

 v
eh

ic
le

s @
 $

60
,0

00
 e

ac
h

FY
27

: R
ep

la
ce

 5
 n

on
-r

ev
en

ue
 v

eh
ic

le
s @

 $
60

,0
00

 e
ac

h

- 
15

0,
00

0
 

- 
54

0,
00

0
 

30
0,

00
0

    
    

    
    

   
99

0,
00

0
$ 

    
    

    
    

   

N
on

-R
ev

en
ue

 V
eh

ic
le

:
Te

ch
no

lo
gy

Bu
s

An
nu

al
 R

ep
la

ce
m

en
t p

er
 y

ea
r:

FY
25

: R
ep

la
ce

 2
 n

on
-r

ev
en

ue
 v

eh
ic

le
s @

 $
35

,0
00

 e
ac

h
FY

26
: R

ep
la

ce
 1

 n
on

-r
ev

en
ue

 v
eh

ic
le

 @
 $

36
,0

50

- 
- 

70
,0

00
 

36
,0

50
 

- 
10

6,
05

0
$

 

N
on

-R
ev

en
ue

Ve
hi

cl
e:

Re
ve

nu
e

&
Ad

m
in

Bu
s

An
nu

al
 R

ep
la

ce
m

en
t p

er
 y

ea
r:

FY
26

: R
ep

la
ce

 2
 n

on
-r

ev
en

ue
 v

eh
ic

le
s @

 $
36

,5
00

 e
ac

h
- 

- 
- 

73
,0

00
 

- 
73

,0
00

$
 

N
on

-R
ev

en
ue

 V
eh

ic
le

:
Ra

il 
Bu

s
An

nu
al

 R
ep

la
ce

m
en

t p
er

 y
ea

r:
FY

26
: R

ep
la

ce
 4

 n
on

-r
ev

en
ue

 v
eh

ic
le

s @
 $

30
,0

00
 e

ac
h

FY
27

:R
ep

la
ce

no
n-

re
ve

nu
e

ve
hi

cl
es

;8
@

$3
6,

00
0

ea
ch

,1
@

$6
0,

00
0,

an
d

4
@

$4
0,

00
0

ea
ch

- 
- 

- 
12

0,
00

0
    

    
    

    
   

50
8,

00
0

    
    

    
    

   
62

8,
00

0
$ 

    
    

    
    

   

N
on

-R
ev

en
ue

 V
eh

ic
le

:
De

ve
lo

pm
en

t &
 P

la
nn

in
g

Bu
s

An
nu

al
 R

ep
la

ce
m

en
t p

er
 y

ea
r:

FY
27

: R
ep

la
ce

 2
 n

on
-r

ev
en

ue
 v

eh
ic

le
s @

 $
33

,4
33

 e
ac

h
- 

- 
- 

- 
66

,8
66

 
66

,8
66

$
 

Su
bt

ot
al

39
0,

53
0

$ 
    

    
    

    
65

0,
74

0
$ 

    
    

    
    

70
,0

00
$ 

    
    

    
    

  
83

3,
21

2
$ 

    
    

    
    

1,
31

9,
94

2
$ 

    
    

    
3,

26
4,

42
4

$ 
    

    
    

    

93



Ap
pe

nd
ic

es
 |

 3
1

Ap
pe

nd
ix

 6
 –

Ca
pi

ta
l E

xp
en

di
tu

re
 D

et
ai

ls

FY
 2

02
3 

Pr
op

os
ed

 B
ud

ge
t

FY
20

23
FY

20
24

FY
20

25
FY

20
26

FY
20

27
FY

20
23

 - 
FY

20
27

Pr
op

os
ed

Bu
dg

et
 P

la
n

 P
la

n
 P

la
n

 P
la

n
 T

O
TA

L

Tr
an

si
t N

ew
 E

qu
ip

m
en

t
M

is
ce

lla
ne

ou
s C

ap
ita

l P
ro

je
ct

s
Fi

na
nc

e
Tr

an
si

t-
re

la
te

d 
ca

pi
ta

l p
ro

je
ct

s f
or

 e
m

er
ge

nt
 n

ee
ds

 th
ro

ug
ho

ut
 th

e 
fis

ca
l y

ea
r

2,
47

1,
20

1
$ 

    
    

    
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
2,

47
1,

20
1

$ 
    

    
    

    

Se
rv

er
 R

ef
re

sh
 (T

M
P 

2.
4)

Te
ch

no
lo

gy
Ye

ar
ly

 re
fr

es
h 

of
 o

ld
er

 se
rv

er
s w

ith
 fo

ur
-y

ea
r u

se
fu

l l
ife

; p
er

 C
ity

 st
an

da
rd

s
34

,0
00

 
53

8,
00

0
    

    
    

    
   

50
4,

00
0

    
    

    
    

   
13

8,
00

0
    

    
    

    
   

10
0,

00
0

    
    

    
    

   
1,

31
4,

00
0

$ 
    

    
    

    
As

se
t

M
an

ag
em

en
t

To
ol

-S
pe

ar
Re

pl
ac

em
en

t
Te

ch
no

lo
gy

N
ew

 a
ss

et
 m

an
ag

em
en

t t
oo

l t
o 

as
si

st
 w

ith
 in

ve
nt

or
y 

tr
ac

ki
ng

1,
15

9,
81

5
    

    
    

   
- 

- 
- 

- 
1,

15
9,

81
5

$ 
    

    
    

    

Da
vi

ds
on

 N
et

w
or

k 
Re

fr
es

h
Te

ch
no

lo
gy

Re
pl

ac
e 

co
re

 sw
itc

he
s t

o 
m

ai
nt

ai
n 

sy
st

em
 co

m
pa

tib
ili

ty
22

0,
00

0
    

    
    

    
   

42
,5

00
 

24
,0

00
 

- 
- 

28
6,

50
0

$ 
    

    
    

    
   

UP
S

Re
fr

es
h

fo
r

Lo
ca

l
Se

rv
er

s
&

Sw
itc

he
s

Te
ch

no
lo

gy
Re

pl
ac

ed
 6

 co
m

m
er

ci
al

 U
PS

 u
ni

ts
 a

t S
ou

th
 T

ry
on

- 
- 

24
0,

00
0

    
    

    
    

   
- 

- 
24

0,
00

0
$ 

    
    

    
    

   

CA
TS

 N
et

w
or

k 
Re

fr
es

h
Te

ch
no

lo
gy

An
nu

al
 re

fr
es

h:
 1

4 
ca

ta
ly

st
 3

85
0 

ne
tw

or
k 

sw
itc

he
s f

or
 th

e 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s/

ra
il 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
t

- 
10

0,
00

0
 

10
0,

00
0

    
    

    
    

   
- 

- 
20

0,
00

0
$ 

    
    

    
    

   
LR

 S
CA

DA
 F

ire
w

al
l R

ef
re

sh
Te

ch
no

lo
gy

Re
fr

es
h 

th
e 

fir
ew

al
l o

pe
ra

tin
g 

sy
st

em
25

0,
00

0
    

    
    

    
   

- 
- 

- 
- 

25
0,

00
0

$ 
    

    
    

    
   

DR
 S

ys
te

m
 U

pg
ra

de
Bu

s
Up

gr
ad

e
DR

sy
st

em
to

op
er

at
e

th
e

en
un

ci
at

io
n

sy
st

em
an

d
pr

ov
id

e
w

ire
le

ss
da

ta
up

lo
ad

in
g 

an
d 

do
w

nl
oa

di
ng

.
- 

- 
66

1,
43

2
    

    
    

    
   

- 
- 

66
1,

43
2

$ 
    

    
    

    
   

Ci
ty

 o
f C

ha
rlo

tt
e 

ER
P 

In
iti

at
iv

es
Fi

na
nc

e
CA

TS
po

rt
io

n
of

Ci
ty

's
CI

P
ex

pe
ns

es
(~

11
%

of
to

ta
l):

M
UN

IS
up

gr
ad

es
;

re
po

rt
in

g
so

lu
tio

ns
;

M
W

SB
E/

DB
E

m
od

ul
e;

tr
ai

ni
ng

in
iti

at
iv

es
;

tr
av

el
m

od
ul

e;
eP

ro
cu

re
m

en
t

m
od

ul
e;

 B
ud

ge
t S

ys
te

m
 u

pg
ra

de
79

0,
07

7
    

    
    

    
   

79
0,

07
7

    
    

    
    

   
79

0,
07

7
    

    
    

    
   

- 
- 

2,
37

0,
23

1
$ 

    
    

    
    

Co
nt

in
ge

nc
y 

fo
r I

T 
Pr

oj
ec

ts
Te

ch
no

lo
gy

Co
nt

in
ge

nc
y 

fo
r I

T 
Pr

oj
ec

ts
10

0,
00

0
    

    
    

    
   

10
0,

00
0

    
    

    
    

   
10

0,
00

0
    

    
    

    
   

10
0,

00
0

    
    

    
    

   
10

0,
00

0
    

    
    

    
   

50
0,

00
0

$ 
    

    
    

    
   

BL
E 

N
et

w
or

k 
Re

fr
es

h
Te

ch
no

lo
gy

Ph
as

e 
I o

f B
LE

 N
et

w
or

k 
Re

fr
es

h
- 

- 
- 

- 
50

0,
00

0
    

    
    

    
   

50
0,

00
0

$ 
    

    
    

    
   

Pa
rk

 &
 R

id
e 

N
et

w
or

k 
Re

fr
es

h
Te

ch
no

lo
gy

Sy
st

em
 re

fr
es

h 
of

 P
ar

k 
an

d 
Ri

de
 E

qu
ip

m
en

t
- 

- 
- 

- 
19

5,
00

0
    

    
    

    
   

19
5,

00
0

$ 
    

    
    

    
   

Ra
il 

Sh
op

 E
qu

ip
m

en
t

Ra
il

Eq
ui

pm
en

t f
or

 M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 o
f W

ay
 / 

Ra
il 

M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

32
7,

43
2

    
    

    
    

   
- 

- 
- 

- 
32

7,
43

2
$ 

    
    

    
    

   
Ha

st
us

So
ft

w
ar

e 
Up

gr
ad

e
Te

ch
no

lo
gy

Up
gr

ad
e

Ha
st

us
so

ft
w

ar
e

us
ed

fo
r

sc
he

du
lin

g,
tr

ip
pl

an
ni

ng
,

ca
ll

ce
nt

er
,

m
ob

ile
ap

pl
ic

at
on

s,
 d

is
pa

tc
hi

ng
, a

ss
ig

nm
en

ts
, a

nd
 p

ay
ro

ll
60

0,
00

0
    

    
    

    
   

- 
- 

- 
- 

60
0,

00
0

$ 
    

    
    

    
   

Ra
di

o 
Di

sp
at

ch
 C

on
so

le
 R

ef
re

sh
Te

ch
no

lo
gy

Re
pl

ac
e 

ex
is

tin
g 

ra
di

o 
di

sp
at

ch
 co

ns
ol

es
 w

ith
 th

e 
la

te
st

 m
od

el
s a

va
ila

bl
e

- 
- 

45
0,

00
0

    
    

    
    

   
- 

- 
45

0,
00

0
$ 

    
    

    
    

   
Fr

ic
tio

n 
M

od
ifi

er
s

Ra
il

Eq
ui

pm
en

td
ec

re
as

es
th

e
fr

ic
tio

n
in

th
e

in
te

ra
ct

io
n

be
tw

ee
n

th
e

tr
ac

k
an

d
th

e
w

he
el

to
 d

ec
re

as
e 

st
re

ss
 a

nd
 p

re
ss

ur
e 

on
 b

ot
h

- 
- 

- 
14

6,
34

0
    

    
    

    
   

- 
14

6,
34

0
$

 

St
ea

m
 B

ay
 Li

ft
 a

t S
. T

ry
on

Bu
s

Re
pl

ac
e

th
e

st
ea

m
ba

y
lif

tw
hi

ch
he

lp
s

in
th

e
bu

sr
ep

ai
rp

ro
ce

ss
by

id
en

tif
yi

ng
le

ak
s

th
at

 n
ee

d 
to

 b
e 

re
pa

ire
d

- 
- 

- 
16

0,
00

0
    

    
    

    
   

16
0,

00
0

    
    

    
    

   
32

0,
00

0
$ 

    
    

    
    

   

AV
L S

ys
te

m
Te

ch
no

lo
gy

N
ew

 A
VL

 S
ys

te
m

 to
 re

pl
ac

e 
Tr

an
si

t M
as

te
r

- 
- 

- 
1,

80
0,

00
0

    
    

    
   

- 
1,

80
0,

00
0

$ 
    

    
    

    
Sc

ru
bb

er
Bu

s
Pu

rc
ha

se
 2

 sc
ru

bb
er

s @
 $

20
,0

00
 e

ac
h

- 
- 

- 
- 

40
,0

00
 

40
,0

00
$

 
Sh

op
 F

lo
or

 S
cr

ub
be

r
Bu

s
Pu

rc
ha

se
 8

 S
ho

p 
Fl

oo
r S

cr
ub

be
rs

 @
 $

7,
00

0 
ea

ch
- 

- 
- 

- 
56

,0
00

 
56

,0
00

$
 

Fo
rk

 Li
ft

s
Bu

s
Pu

rc
ha

se
 4

 F
or

k 
Li

ft
s @

 $
17

,5
00

 e
ac

h
- 

- 
- 

- 
70

,0
00

 
70

,0
00

$
 

Ri
m

 P
ol

is
he

r
Bu

s
As

si
st

s w
ith

 id
en

tif
ic

at
io

n 
of

 st
ru

ct
ur

al
 in

te
gr

ity
 is

su
es

 a
nd

 d
am

ag
es

 to
 b

us
 w

he
el

s
- 

- 
- 

- 
14

0,
00

0
    

    
    

    
   

14
0,

00
0

$ 
    

    
    

    
   

Cl
im

at
e 

Co
nt

ro
lle

d 
Co

nt
ai

ne
rs

Ra
il

Co
nt

ai
ne

rs
 u

se
d 

to
 st

or
e 

la
rg

e 
el

ec
tr

on
ic

 a
nd

 ru
bb

er
 LR

V 
&

 S
tr

ee
tc

ar
 sp

ar
es

- 
- 

- 
- 

75
,0

00
 

75
,0

00
$

 
Br

ak
e 

Ro
to

r L
at

he
Bu

s
Eq

ui
pm

en
tu

se
d

fo
rc

ur
in

g
no

is
e

an
d

vi
br

at
io

n
pr

ob
le

m
s

an
d

as
si

st
in

pr
ol

on
gi

ng
th

e
lif

e 
of

 b
us

 b
ra

ke
 sy

st
em

s
- 

- 
- 

- 
20

,0
00

 
20

,0
00

$
 

Su
bt

ot
al

5,
95

2,
52

5
$ 

    
    

    
1,

57
0,

57
7

$ 
    

    
    

2,
86

9,
50

9
$ 

    
    

    
2,

34
4,

34
0

$ 
    

    
    

1,
45

6,
00

0
$ 

    
    

    
14

,1
92

,9
51

$ 
    

    
    

 

G
ra

nt
-F

un
de

d 
Ca

pi
ta

l P
ro

je
ct

s S
ub

to
ta

l
47

,1
05

,9
49

$ 
    

    
  

26
,2

78
,1

52
$ 

    
    

  
20

,3
19

,9
34

$ 
    

    
  

20
,7

83
,9

76
$ 

    
    

  
29

,6
38

,6
46

$ 
    

    
  

14
4,

12
6,

65
7

$ 
    

    
   

94



Ap
pe

nd
ic

es
 |

 3
2

Ap
pe

nd
ix

 6
 –

Ca
pi

ta
l E

xp
en

di
tu

re
 D

et
ai

ls

FY
 2

02
3 

Pr
op

os
ed

 B
ud

ge
t

FY
20

23
FY

20
24

FY
20

25
FY

20
26

FY
20

27
FY

20
23

 - 
FY

20
27

Pr
op

os
ed

Bu
dg

et
 P

la
n

 P
la

n
 P

la
n

 P
la

n
 T

O
TA

L

Ca
rr

y 
O

ve
r C

ap
ita

l P
ro

je
ct

s

De
pa

rt
m

en
t

Pr
oj

ec
t D

es
cr

ip
tio

n
Sa

fe
ty

 &
 S

ec
ur

ity
Ac

ce
ss

 C
on

tr
ol

 - 
Fi

re
 P

an
el

50
,0

00
$ 

    
    

    
    

  
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
50

,0
00

$ 
    

    
    

    
  

De
ve

lo
pm

en
t

AD
A 

As
se

ss
m

en
t

20
0,

00
0

    
    

    
    

   
- 

- 
- 

- 
20

0,
00

0
    

    
    

    
   

Ra
il

BL
E 

O
rig

in
 S

tu
dy

1,
93

7
 

- 
- 

- 
- 

1,
93

7
 

Sa
fe

ty
 &

 S
ec

ur
ity

Bl
ue

 Li
ne

 C
am

er
a 

Re
pl

ac
em

en
t

44
0,

79
3

    
    

    
    

   
- 

- 
- 

- 
44

0,
79

3
    

    
    

    
   

Bu
s

Bu
s C

om
m

un
ic

at
io

ns
 S

ys
te

m
28

,4
34

 
- 

- 
- 

- 
28

,4
34

 
Bu

s
Bu

s L
an

e 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
75

0,
00

0
    

    
    

    
   

- 
- 

- 
- 

75
0,

00
0

    
    

    
    

   
Bu

s
Bu

s N
ew

 E
qu

ip
m

en
t

34
4,

78
1

    
    

    
    

   
- 

- 
- 

- 
34

4,
78

1
    

    
    

    
   

Bu
s

Bu
s R

ep
la

ce
m

en
ts

47
,5

92
,9

72
    

    
    

 
- 

- 
- 

- 
47

,5
92

,9
72

    
    

    
 

Bu
s

Bu
s S

hi
el

ds
64

8,
23

2
    

    
    

    
   

- 
- 

- 
- 

64
8,

23
2

    
    

    
    

   
Fa

ci
lit

ie
s

Bu
s S

to
p 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

1,
35

1,
19

3
    

    
    

   
- 

- 
- 

- 
1,

35
1,

19
3

    
    

    
   

Bu
s

Bu
s W

as
h 

/ B
ay

 Li
ft

s
77

9,
39

1
    

    
    

    
   

- 
- 

- 
- 

77
9,

39
1

    
    

    
    

   
Sa

fe
ty

 &
 S

ec
ur

ity
Ca

m
er

a 
Up

gr
ad

es
21

4,
06

7
    

    
    

    
   

- 
- 

- 
- 

21
4,

06
7

    
    

    
    

   
De

ve
lo

pm
en

t
Ch

ar
lo

tt
e 

Ga
te

w
ay

 S
ta

tio
n 

- N
on

-F
RA

6,
49

3,
70

3
    

    
    

   
- 

- 
- 

- 
6,

49
3,

70
3

    
    

    
   

Fa
ci

lit
ie

s -
 B

LE
 S

av
in

gs
Co

m
fo

rt
 S

ta
tio

n 
@

 O
CR

60
0,

00
0

    
    

    
    

   
- 

- 
- 

- 
60

0,
00

0
    

    
    

    
   

Te
ch

no
lo

gy
Co

nt
in

uu
m

/T
w

o 
Fa

ct
or

 S
ec

ur
ity

65
,0

00
 

- 
- 

- 
- 

65
,0

00
 

Sa
fe

ty
 &

 S
ec

ur
ity

Co
re

 a
nd

 P
ad

lo
ck

 R
ep

la
ce

m
en

t a
t F

ac
ili

tie
s

21
8,

85
4

    
    

    
    

   
- 

- 
- 

- 
21

8,
85

4
    

    
    

    
   

Te
ch

no
lo

gy
CT

C 
Ca

m
er

a 
Up

gr
ad

es
30

6,
05

0
    

    
    

    
   

- 
- 

- 
- 

30
6,

05
0

    
    

    
    

   
Te

ch
no

lo
gy

Da
vi

ds
on

 N
et

w
or

k 
Re

fr
es

h
52

,5
00

 
- 

- 
- 

- 
52

,5
00

 
Ra

il-
BL

E 
Sa

vi
ng

s
Dr

ai
na

ge
 Im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
2,

58
5,

55
2

    
    

    
   

- 
- 

- 
- 

2,
58

5,
55

2
    

    
    

   
Sa

fe
ty

 &
 S

ec
ur

ity
-B

LE
 S

av
in

gs
Eg

re
ss

 G
at

e 
Pr

oj
ec

t
30

0,
00

0
    

    
    

    
   

- 
- 

- 
- 

30
0,

00
0

    
    

    
    

   
Fa

ci
lit

ie
s

El
ec

tr
ic

 C
ha

rg
in

g 
St

at
io

ns
50

0,
00

0
    

    
    

    
   

- 
- 

- 
- 

50
0,

00
0

    
    

    
    

   
Ra

il
Em

er
ge

nc
y 

Re
sp

on
se

 V
eh

ic
le

52
9,

44
9

    
    

    
    

   
- 

- 
- 

- 
52

9,
44

9
    

    
    

    
   

Fa
ci

lit
ie

s
Fa

ci
lit

ie
s P

ro
je

ct
s

25
9,

88
4

    
    

    
    

   
- 

- 
- 

- 
25

9,
88

4
    

    
    

    
   

Fa
ci

lit
ie

s
Fa

ci
lit

y 
Pr

oj
ec

ts
15

0,
00

0
    

    
    

    
   

- 
- 

- 
- 

15
0,

00
0

    
    

    
    

   
Ra

il
Fa

re
 C

ol
le

ct
io

n 
Sy

st
em

1,
48

6,
04

8
    

    
    

   
- 

- 
- 

- 
1,

48
6,

04
8

    
    

    
   

Fa
ci

lit
ie

s
Fe

nc
in

g 
Re

pl
ac

em
en

t
32

5,
00

0
    

    
    

    
   

- 
- 

- 
- 

32
5,

00
0

    
    

    
    

   
Te

ch
no

lo
gy

Ge
nf

ar
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t

10
3,

51
6

    
    

    
    

   
- 

- 
- 

- 
10

3,
51

6
    

    
    

    
   

Ra
il

Ge
rm

ic
id

al
 R

ai
ls

30
0,

00
0

    
    

    
    

   
- 

- 
- 

- 
30

0,
00

0
    

    
    

    
   

Sa
fe

ty
 &

 S
ec

ur
ity

Gu
ar

d 
Sh

ac
ks

17
5,

00
0

    
    

    
    

   
- 

- 
- 

- 
17

5,
00

0
    

    
    

    
   

De
ve

lo
pm

en
t

Ha
m

br
ig

ht
 P

ar
k 

&
 R

id
e

2,
95

0,
44

6
    

    
    

   
- 

- 
- 

- 
2,

95
0,

44
6

    
    

    
   

Bu
s

HA
ST

US
 S

ys
te

m
44

9,
44

1
    

    
    

    
   

- 
- 

- 
- 

44
9,

44
1

    
    

    
    

   
Fa

ci
lit

ie
s

HV
AC

 R
ep

la
ce

m
en

t
77

8,
83

7
    

    
    

    
   

- 
- 

- 
- 

77
8,

83
7

    
    

    
    

   
Te

ch
no

lo
gy

In
te

ra
ct

iv
e 

Vo
ic

e 
Re

sp
on

se
45

5,
82

0
    

    
    

    
   

- 
- 

- 
- 

45
5,

82
0

    
    

    
    

   
De

ve
lo

pm
en

t
La

nd
 A

cq
ui

si
tio

ns
11

,4
96

,9
57

    
    

    
 

- 
- 

- 
- 

11
,4

96
,9

57
    

    
    

 
Fa

ci
lit

ie
s

Li
gh

tin
g 

Up
gr

ad
es

60
0,

00
0

    
    

    
    

   
- 

- 
- 

- 
60

0,
00

0
    

    
    

    
   

Fa
ci

lit
ie

s
Li

gh
tin

g 
Up

gr
ad

es
 - 

So
ut

h 
Co

rr
id

or
30

0,
00

0
    

    
    

    
   

- 
- 

- 
- 

30
0,

00
0

    
    

    
    

   
Ra

il-
BL

E 
Sa

vi
ng

s
LR

V 
Tr

uc
k 

O
ve

rh
au

l E
M

I M
iti

ga
tio

n
3,

80
0,

00
0

    
    

    
   

- 
- 

- 
- 

3,
80

0,
00

0
    

    
    

   
De

ve
lo

pm
en

t
LY

N
X 

Bl
ue

 Li
ne

 C
ap

ac
ity

 E
xp

an
si

on
 P

ro
je

ct
53

4,
48

8
    

    
    

    
   

- 
- 

- 
- 

53
4,

48
8

    
    

    
    

   
De

ve
lo

pm
en

t
LY

N
X 

Bl
ue

 Li
ne

 E
xt

en
si

on
48

,1
15

,5
72

    
    

    
 

- 
- 

- 
- 

48
,1

15
,5

72
    

    
    

 
De

ve
lo

pm
en

t
LY

N
X 

Bl
ue

 Li
ne

 E
xt

en
si

on
 - 

N
on

-F
FG

A
(3

5,
00

0)
 

- 
- 

- 
- 

(3
5,

00
0)

 
De

ve
lo

pm
en

t
LY

N
X 

Si
lv

er
 Li

ne
28

,9
20

,0
74

    
    

    
 

- 
- 

- 
- 

28
,9

20
,0

74
    

    
    

 
Ad

m
in

is
tr

at
io

n
M

is
c.

 C
ap

ita
l P

ro
je

ct
s

67
5,

38
4

    
    

    
    

   
- 

- 
- 

- 
67

5,
38

4
    

    
    

    
   

Ra
il

M
is

c.
 R

ai
l E

qu
ip

m
en

t
68

6,
05

1
    

    
    

    
   

- 
- 

- 
- 

68
6,

05
1

    
    

    
    

   
Te

ch
no

lo
gy

M
ob

ile
 A

pp
lic

at
io

n 
Ph

as
e 

2
20

9,
02

2
    

    
    

    
   

- 
- 

- 
- 

20
9,

02
2

    
    

    
    

   

Un
ex

pe
nd

ed
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

tio
ns

 e
st

im
at

ed
 a

s o
f F

eb
ru

ar
y 

28
, 2

02
2 

fo
r p

re
vi

ou
sl

y 
au

th
or

iz
ed

 m
ul

ti-
ye

ar
 ca

pt
ia

l p
ro

je
ct

s o
r g

ra
nt

 p
ro

je
ct

s a
re

 re
-a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
d 

fo
r e

xp
en

di
tu

re
 in

 F
Y2

02
2;

 lo
ca

l g
ra

nt
-m

at
ch

in
g 

ob
lig

at
io

ns
 th

at
 w

er
e 

pr
ev

io
us

ly
 

au
th

or
iz

ed
 a

s p
ar

t o
f m

ul
ti-

ye
ar

 g
ra

nt
 p

ro
je

ct
s a

re
 a

ls
o 

re
-a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
d 

fo
r e

xp
en

di
tu

re
 in

 F
Y2

02
2.

95



Ap
pe

nd
ic

es
 |

 3
3

Ap
pe

nd
ix

 6
 –

Ca
pi

ta
l E

xp
en

di
tu

re
 D

et
ai

ls

FY
 2

02
3 

Pr
op

os
ed

 B
ud

ge
t

FY
20

23
FY

20
24

FY
20

25
FY

20
26

FY
20

27
FY

20
23

 - 
FY

20
27

Pr
op

os
ed

Bu
dg

et
 P

la
n

 P
la

n
 P

la
n

 P
la

n
 T

O
TA

L

Ca
rr

y 
O

ve
r C

ap
ita

l P
ro

je
ct

s

De
pa

rt
m

en
t

Pr
oj

ec
t D

es
cr

ip
tio

n
Sa

fe
ty

 &
 S

ec
ur

ity
M

ob
ile

 V
id

eo
 R

ep
la

ce
m

en
t

1,
93

7,
38

3
    

    
    

   
- 

- 
- 

- 
1,

93
7,

38
3

    
    

    
   

Ra
il

M
O

W
 B

at
te

ry
 R

ep
la

ce
m

en
t

94
,4

11
 

- 
- 

- 
- 

94
,4

11
 

Ra
il

M
O

W
 C

iv
il 

En
gi

ne
er

in
g 

Se
rv

ic
es

1,
20

7,
29

1
    

    
    

   
- 

- 
- 

- 
1,

20
7,

29
1

    
    

    
   

Bu
s

M
O

W
 T

ra
ct

io
n

80
3,

00
0

    
    

    
    

   
- 

- 
- 

- 
80

3,
00

0
    

    
    

    
   

De
ve

lo
pm

en
t -

 B
LE

 S
av

in
gs

N
. Y

ar
d 

La
nd

 A
cq

ui
si

tio
ns

7,
50

0,
00

0
    

    
    

   
- 

- 
- 

- 
7,

50
0,

00
0

    
    

    
   

Bu
s

N
on

 R
ev

en
ue

 V
eh

ic
le

s -
 B

us
35

6,
25

0
    

    
    

    
   

- 
- 

- 
- 

35
6,

25
0

    
    

    
    

   
Bu

s
N

on
 R

ev
en

ue
 V

eh
ic

le
s -

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t
45

,0
00

 
- 

- 
- 

- 
45

,0
00

 
Bu

s
N

on
 R

ev
en

ue
 V

eh
ic

le
s -

 F
ac

ili
tie

s
73

,4
46

 
- 

- 
- 

- 
73

,4
46

 
Bu

s
N

on
 R

ev
en

ue
 V

eh
ic

le
s -

 R
ai

l
54

8,
69

2
    

    
    

    
   

- 
- 

- 
- 

54
8,

69
2

    
    

    
    

   
Bu

s
N

on
 R

ev
en

ue
 V

eh
ic

le
s -

 S
TS

10
1,

26
0

    
    

    
    

   
- 

- 
- 

- 
10

1,
26

0
    

    
    

    
   

Bu
s

N
on

 R
ev

en
ue

 V
eh

ic
le

s -
 T

ec
hn

ol
og

y
21

,0
00

 
- 

- 
- 

- 
21

,0
00

 
Bu

s
N

on
-R

ev
en

ue
 V

eh
ic

le
s -

 B
us

36
6,

30
0

    
    

    
    

   
- 

- 
- 

- 
36

6,
30

0
    

    
    

    
   

Bu
s

N
on

-R
ev

en
ue

 V
eh

ic
le

s -
 F

ac
ili

tie
s

60
,0

00
 

- 
- 

- 
- 

60
,0

00
 

Bu
s

N
on

-R
ev

en
ue

 V
eh

ic
le

s -
 M

ar
ke

tin
g

90
,0

00
 

- 
- 

- 
- 

90
,0

00
 

Bu
s

N
on

-R
ev

en
ue

 V
eh

ic
le

s -
 R

ai
l

1,
17

2,
39

4
    

    
    

   
- 

- 
- 

- 
1,

17
2,

39
4

    
    

    
   

Bu
s

N
on

-R
ev

en
ue

 V
eh

ic
le

s -
 S

af
et

y 
&

 S
ec

ur
ity

14
,7

45
 

- 
- 

- 
- 

14
,7

45
 

Bu
s

N
on

-R
ev

en
ue

 V
eh

ic
le

s -
 S

TS
18

8,
02

0
    

    
    

    
   

- 
- 

- 
- 

18
8,

02
0

    
    

    
    

   
Fa

ci
lit

ie
s-

BL
E 

Sa
vi

ng
s

O
pe

ra
to

r B
re

ak
ro

om
 a

t U
CB

80
0,

00
0

    
    

    
    

   
- 

- 
- 

- 
80

0,
00

0
    

    
    

    
   

Sa
fe

ty
 &

 S
ec

ur
ity

Po
lic

e 
Di

sp
at

ch
79

,6
17

 
- 

- 
- 

- 
79

,6
17

 
Te

ch
no

lo
gy

Pr
iv

at
e 

M
ob

ile
 N

et
w

or
k

21
1,

67
1

    
    

    
    

   
- 

- 
- 

- 
21

1,
67

1
    

    
    

    
   

Ra
il

Ra
i l 

Ca
r E

xp
an

si
on

22
,5

00
,0

00
    

    
    

 
- 

- 
- 

- 
22

,5
00

,0
00

    
    

    
 

Ra
il

Ra
il 

Sh
op

 E
qu

ip
m

en
t

25
0,

00
0

    
    

    
    

   
- 

- 
- 

- 
25

0,
00

0
    

    
    

    
   

Sa
fe

ty
 &

 S
ec

ur
ity

SC
LR

 Li
gh

tin
g 

Up
gr

ad
es

30
0,

00
0

    
    

    
    

   
- 

- 
- 

- 
30

0,
00

0
    

    
    

    
   

Sa
fe

ty
 &

 S
ec

ur
ity

Se
cu

rit
y 

En
ha

nc
em

en
ts

40
5,

30
6

    
    

    
    

   
- 

- 
- 

- 
40

5,
30

6
    

    
    

    
   

Te
ch

no
lo

gy
Se

rv
er

 R
ef

re
sh

 T
M

P 
(2

.4
)

29
7,

50
0

    
    

    
    

   
- 

- 
- 

- 
29

7,
50

0
    

    
    

    
   

De
ve

lo
pm

en
t

Si
lv

er
lin

e 
Co

ns
ul

ta
nt

s
1,

01
6,

01
7

    
    

    
   

- 
- 

- 
- 

1,
01

6,
01

7
    

    
    

   
Te

ch
no

lo
gy

So
ut

h 
Tr

yo
n 

N
et

w
or

k 
In

fr
as

tr
uc

tu
re

 R
ef

re
sh

15
,2

63
 

- 
- 

- 
- 

15
,2

63
 

De
ve

lo
pm

en
t -

 B
LE

 S
av

in
gs

So
ut

he
nd

 S
ta

tio
n

15
,0

00
,0

01
    

    
    

 
- 

- 
- 

- 
15

,0
00

,0
01

    
    

    
 

Bu
s

ST
S 

Re
pl

ac
em

en
ts

7,
14

6,
08

0
    

    
    

   
- 

- 
- 

- 
7,

14
6,

08
0

    
    

    
   

Te
ch

no
lo

gy
Te

ch
no

lo
gy

 P
ro

je
ct

s
14

0,
86

3
    

    
    

    
   

- 
- 

- 
- 

14
0,

86
3

    
    

    
    

   
Ra

il
Tr

ac
k 

4 
Fa

ll 
Pr

ot
ec

tio
n

32
5,

44
0

    
    

    
    

   
- 

- 
- 

- 
32

5,
44

0
    

    
    

    
   

Ra
il

Tr
an

si
t B

rid
ge

26
0,

64
0

    
    

    
    

   
- 

- 
- 

- 
26

0,
64

0
    

    
    

    
   

De
ve

lo
pm

en
t

Tr
an

si
t S

ys
te

m
 P

la
nn

in
g 

&
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t

8,
89

4
 

- 
- 

- 
- 

8,
89

4
 

Ra
il

UP
S 

Eq
ui

pm
en

t
33

2,
58

7
    

    
    

    
   

- 
- 

- 
- 

33
2,

58
7

    
    

    
    

   
Te

ch
no

lo
gy

UP
S 

Re
fr

es
h

21
0,

00
0

    
    

    
    

   
- 

- 
- 

- 
21

0,
00

0
    

    
    

    
   

Bu
s

Va
n 

Po
ol

 R
ep

la
ce

m
en

ts
2,

74
2,

98
8

    
    

    
   

- 
- 

- 
- 

2,
74

2,
98

8
    

    
    

   
Sa

fe
ty

 &
 S

ec
ur

ity
Vi

de
o 

So
lu

tio
n

11
1,

45
2

    
    

    
    

   
- 

- 
- 

- 
11

1,
45

2
    

    
    

    
   

Te
ch

no
lo

gy
VM

F 
Re

fr
es

h
4,

78
1

 
- 

- 
- 

- 
4,

78
1

 
Fa

ci
lit

ie
s

VM
F 

Tr
an

sf
er

 S
w

itc
h

22
,1

96
 

- 
- 

- 
- 

22
,1

96
 

Te
ch

no
lo

gy
W

or
ks

ta
tio

n 
&

 S
er

ve
r R

ef
re

sh
20

4,
16

0
    

    
    

    
   

- 
- 

- 
- 

20
4,

16
0

    
    

    
    

   

G
ra

nt
-F

un
de

d 
Ca

pi
ta

l P
ro

je
ct

s S
ub

to
ta

l
 $

    
    

 2
33

,7
54

,0
95

 
 $

-
 $

-
 $

-
 $

-
 $

    
    

 2
33

,7
54

,0
95

 

28
0,

86
0,

04
4

$ 
    

   
26

,2
78

,1
52

$ 
    

    
  

20
,3

19
,9

34
$ 

    
    

  
20

,7
83

,9
76

$ 
    

    
  

29
,6

38
,6

46
$ 

    
    

  
37

7,
88

0,
75

2
$ 

    
   

Un
ex

pe
nd

ed
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

tio
ns

 e
st

im
at

ed
 a

s o
f F

eb
ru

ar
y 

28
, 2

02
2 

fo
r p

re
vi

ou
sl

y 
au

th
or

iz
ed

 m
ul

ti-
ye

ar
 ca

pt
ia

l p
ro

je
ct

s o
r g

ra
nt

 p
ro

je
ct

s a
re

 re
-a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
d 

fo
r e

xp
en

di
tu

re
 in

 F
Y2

02
2;

 lo
ca

l g
ra

nt
-m

at
ch

in
g 

ob
lig

at
io

ns
 th

at
 w

er
e 

pr
ev

io
us

ly
 

au
th

or
iz

ed
 a

s p
ar

t o
f m

ul
ti-

ye
ar

 g
ra

nt
 p

ro
je

ct
s a

re
 a

ls
o 

re
-a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
d 

fo
r e

xp
en

di
tu

re
 in

 F
Y2

02
2.

TO
TA

L I
nc

lu
di

ng
 C

ar
ry

 O
ve

r C
ap

ita
l P

ro
je

ct
s,

 E
xc

lu
di

ng
 G

ra
nt

-F
un

de
d 

O
pe

ra
tin

g 
Pr

oj
ec

ts

96



Ap
pe

nd
ic

es
 |

 3
4

Ap
pe

nd
ix

 7
 –

Gr
an

t-
Fu

nd
ed

 O
pe

ra
tin

g 
Pr

oj
ec

ts

FY
 2

02
3 

Pr
op

os
ed

 B
ud

ge
t

FY
20

23
FY

20
24

FY
20

25
FY

20
26

FY
20

27
FY

20
23

 - 
FY

20
27

Pr
op

os
ed

Bu
dg

et
 P

la
n

 P
la

n
 P

la
n

 P
la

n
 T

O
TA

L

G
ra

nt
 F

un
de

d 
CO

VI
D 

O
pe

ra
tin

g 
As

si
st

an
ce

 P
ro

je
ct

s-
 F

ed
er

al
 S

ha
re

 O
nl

y

Pr
of

es
si

on
al

 &
 T

ec
hn

ic
al

 S
er

vi
ce

s
De

ve
lo

pm
en

t &
 

Ci
vi

l R
ig

ht
s

Ri
de

rs
hi

p 
fo

re
ca

st
in

g,
 ca

pt
io

ni
ng

 se
rv

ic
es

, A
DA

 a
nd

 T
itl

e 
VI

 re
la

te
d 

pr
of

es
si

on
al

 se
rv

ic
e 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 to
 a

cc
om

m
od

at
e 

vi
rt

ua
l m

ee
tin

gs
.

50
2,

50
0

$ 
    

    
   

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

50
2,

50
0

$ 
    

    
   

M
is

ce
lla

ne
ou

s C
on

tr
ac

tu
al

, 
Ja

ni
to

ria
l &

 C
le

an
in

g 
Se

rv
ic

es
Fa

ci
lit

ie
s,

 B
us

, &
 

Ra
il

Pr
of

es
si

on
al

 d
ee

p 
cl

ea
ni

ng
 a

nd
 d

is
in

fe
ct

io
n 

se
rv

ic
es

 in
 h

ig
h 

fr
eq

ue
nc

y 
ar

ea
s

37
3,

30
7

    
    

    
   

- 
- 

- 
- 

37
3,

30
7

    
    

    
   

O
th

er
 C

O
VI

D-
Re

la
te

d 
Pr

oj
ec

ts
Va

rio
us

 
De

pa
rt

m
en

ts
Re

ve
nu

e
sh

or
tf

al
l,

op
er

at
in

g
as

si
st

an
ce

ne
ce

ss
ar

y
to

op
er

at
e,

m
ai

nt
ai

n,
an

d 
m

an
ag

e 
a 

pu
bl

ic
 tr

an
sp

or
ta

tio
n 

sy
st

em
.

8,
33

9,
69

1
    

    
   

- 
- 

- 
- 

8,
33

9,
69

1
    

    
   

G
ra

nt
-F

un
de

d 
CO

VI
D 

O
pe

ra
tin

g 
As

si
st

an
ce

 P
ro

je
ct

s T
ot

al
9,

21
5,

49
8

$ 
    

    
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
9,

21
5,

49
8

$ 
    

    

97



Ap
pe

nd
ic

es
 |

 3
5

Ap
pe

nd
ix

 7
 –

Gr
an

t-
Fu

nd
ed

 O
pe

ra
tin

g 
Pr

oj
ec

ts

FY
 2

02
3 

Pr
op

os
ed

 B
ud

ge
t

FY
20

23
FY

20
24

FY
20

25
FY

20
26

FY
20

27
FY

20
23

 - 
FY

20
27

Pr
op

os
ed

Bu
dg

et
 P

la
n

 P
la

n
 P

la
n

 P
la

n
 T

O
TA

L

G
ra

nt
 F

un
de

d 
O

pe
ra

tin
g 

Pr
oj

ec
ts

- F
ed

er
al

 S
ha

re
 O

nl
y

Re
gi

on
al

 T
ra

ns
it 

Pl
an

 S
tu

dy
- 

UP
W

P 
Pr

oj
ec

ts
De

ve
lo

pm
en

t
Re

gi
on

al
 T

ra
ns

it 
Pl

an
 S

tu
dy

-
$

 
40

0,
00

0
$ 

    
    

   
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

40
0,

00
0

$ 
    

    
   

UP
W

P 
Pr

og
ra

m
De

ve
lo

pm
en

t
Un

ifi
ed

 P
la

nn
in

g 
W

or
k 

Pr
og

ra
m

89
,3

07
    

    
    

    
 

- 
- 

- 
- 

89
,3

07
    

    
    

    
 

Tr
an

si
t O

rie
nt

ed
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

(T
O

D)
 P

la
nn

in
g 

Gr
an

t
De

ve
lo

pm
en

t
Eq

ui
ta

bl
e 

TO
D 

St
ud

y 
- S

ilv
er

lin
e

40
5,

00
0

    
    

    
   

- 
- 

- 
- 

40
5,

00
0

    
    

    
   

Ro
ut

e 
Re

st
or

at
io

n 
Pl

an
ni

ng
 G

ra
nt

De
ve

lo
pm

en
t

Ro
ut

e 
Re

st
or

at
io

n 
Pl

an
ni

ng
 d

es
ig

ne
d 

to
 in

cr
ea

se
 ri

de
rs

hi
p 

an
d 

re
du

ce
 

tr
av

el
 ti

m
es

75
0,

00
0

    
    

    
   

- 
- 

- 
- 

75
0,

00
0

    
    

    
   

Tr
an

si
t P

la
nn

in
g

De
ve

lo
pm

en
t

53
03

 P
la

nn
in

g 
Gr

an
t

1,
37

5,
34

6
    

    
   

- 
- 

- 
- 

1,
37

5,
34

6
    

    
   

Tr
an

si
t P

la
nn

in
g

De
ve

lo
pm

en
t

Co
nn

ec
t &

 B
ey

on
d

80
,0

00
    

    
    

    
 

- 
- 

- 
- 

80
,0

00
    

    
    

    
 

Tr
an

si
t P

la
nn

in
g

De
ve

lo
pm

en
t

Ra
il 

Tr
ai

l
68

,8
00

    
    

    
    

 
- 

- 
-  

- 
68

,8
00

    
    

    
    

 
Ra

il 
Sa

fe
ty

 C
am

pa
ig

n
M

ar
ke

tin
g

Sa
fe

ty
 ca

m
pa

ig
n 

fo
r C

ity
LY

N
X 

ra
il 

sy
st

em
20

,0
80

    
    

    
    

 
- 

- 
- 

- 
20

,0
80

    
    

    
    

 

En
ha

nc
ed

 M
ob

ili
ty

 P
ro

je
ct

 
Ad

m
in

is
tr

at
io

n
Ci

vi
l R

ig
ht

s
Ad

m
in

is
tr

at
iv

e
&

m
on

ito
rin

g
co

st
s

of
th

e
En

ha
nc

ed
M

ob
ili

ty
Gr

an
ta

nd
su

br
ec

ip
ie

nt
 p

ro
je

ct
 e

xp
en

se
s 

2,
00

8,
95

5
    

    
   

89
1,

98
0

    
    

    
   

89
1,

98
0

    
    

    
   

89
1,

98
0

    
    

    
   

89
1,

98
0

    
    

    
   

5,
57

6,
87

5
    

    
   

W
or

ks
ta

tio
ns

Te
ch

no
lo

gy
Ye

ar
ly

 re
fr

es
h 

of
 o

ld
er

 w
or

ks
ta

tio
ns

, v
al

ue
d 

un
de

r $
5,

00
0 

pe
r u

ni
t. 

17
4,

40
0

    
    

    
   

22
5,

12
0

    
    

    
   

- 
-  

- 
39

9,
52

0
    

    
    

   

Pr
ev

en
tiv

e 
M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
-

Fa
ci

lit
ie

s
Fa

ci
lit

ie
s

Bu
s s

to
p 

ba
se

s
5,

60
0

    
    

    
    

   
- 

- 
-  

- 
5,

60
0

    
    

    
    

   

SB
LR

F 
Ro

of
 R

ep
la

ce
m

en
t

Fa
ci

lit
ie

s
Ro

of
 R

ep
la

ce
m

en
t a

t S
ou

th
 B

lv
d 

Li
gh

t R
ai

l F
ac

ili
ty

69
1,

20
0

    
    

    
   

- 
- 

-  
- 

69
1,

20
0

    
    

    
   

S.
 C

or
rid

or
 R

ai
l S

ta
te

 o
f G

oo
d

Re
pa

ir
Fa

ci
lit

ie
s

St
at

io
n 

w
in

ds
cr

ee
n 

an
d 

til
e 

co
lu

m
n 

re
pl

ac
em

en
ts

80
,0

00
    

    
    

    
 

- 
- 

-  
- 

80
,0

00
    

    
    

    
 

S.
 T

ry
on

 C
ar

pe
t R

ep
la

ce
m

en
t

Fa
ci

lit
ie

s
Ca

rp
et

 re
pl

ac
em

en
t a

t S
ou

th
 T

ry
on

 B
us

 F
ac

ili
ty

16
0,

00
0

    
    

    
   

- 
- 

- 
- 

16
0,

00
0

    
    

    
   

Pr
ev

en
tiv

e 
M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 - 

Bu
s

Bu
s

Ro
ut

in
e 

m
ai

nt
en

ce
 fo

r r
ev

en
ue

 b
us

 &
 S

TS
 v

eh
ic

le
s

12
,8

40
,0

00
    

    
 

12
,8

30
,0

85
    

    
 

10
,7

99
,8

70
    

    
 

4,
52

3,
98

8
    

    
   

4,
54

4,
25

8
    

    
   

45
,5

38
,2

01
    

    
 

Pr
ev

en
tiv

e 
M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 - 

Ra
il

Ra
il

Ro
ut

in
e 

m
ai

nt
en

ce
 fo

r r
ai

l v
eh

ic
le

s
7,

50
3,

95
6

    
    

   
7,

00
0,

00
0

    
    

   
5,

35
0,

00
0

    
    

   
85

0,
00

0
    

    
    

   
85

0,
00

0
    

    
    

   
21

,5
53

,9
56

    
    

 

S7
0 

O
ve

rh
au

l E
ng

in
ee

rin
g

Ra
il

Su
pp

or
ta

nd
Q

A
se

rv
ic

es
fo

rv
eh

ic
le

ov
er

ha
ul

st
o

in
cl

ud
e,

m
ai

nt
en

an
ce

,
e l

ec
tr

ic
al

an
d

m
ec

ha
ni

ca
l

up
gr

ad
es

of
LR

V
sy

st
em

s
an

d
su

b-
sy

st
em

,
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t,
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n,

an
d

en
gi

ne
er

in
g

to
co

ve
r

th
e

O
EM

re
co

m
m

en
de

d 
m

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 se

rv
ic

es
 fo

r v
eh

ic
le

 sy
st

em
s.

20
6,

64
1

    
    

    
   

26
6,

05
0

    
    

    
   

20
8,

28
3

    
    

    
   

20
8,

28
3

    
    

    
   

20
8,

28
3

    
    

    
   

1,
09

7,
54

0
    

    
   

S7
0 

O
ve

rh
au

l E
qu

ip
m

en
t 

Ra
il

Eq
ui

pm
en

tn
ec

es
sa

ry
fo

rm
ai

nt
en

an
ce

up
gr

ad
es

of
LR

V
sy

st
em

s
an

d
su

b-
sy

st
em

fo
rt

he
20

ve
hi

cl
e

lig
ht

ra
il

fle
et

.T
he

S7
0

ov
er

ha
ul

pr
og

ra
m

w
ill

be
 p

er
fo

rm
ed

 b
y 

co
nt

ra
ct

or
.

3,
14

5,
78

4
    

    
   

2,
32

6,
63

2
    

    
   

2,
25

8,
86

6
    

    
   

2,
25

8,
86

6
    

    
   

2,
25

8,
86

6
    

    
   

12
,2

49
,0

14
    

    
 

S7
0 

M
id

-L
ife

 O
ve

rh
au

l
Ra

il
M

id
lif

e 
ov

er
ha

ul
 fo

r r
ai

l c
ar

 v
eh

ic
le

s
4,

72
0,

58
1

    
    

   
10

,0
00

,0
00

    
    

 
10

,0
00

,0
00

    
    

 
10

,0
00

,0
00

    
    

 
- 

34
,7

20
,5

81
 

G
ra

nt
-F

un
de

d 
O

pe
ra

tin
g 

Pr
oj

ec
ts

 T
ot

al
34

,3
25

,6
50

$ 
    

 
33

,9
39

,8
67

$ 
    

 
29

,5
08

,9
99

$ 
    

 
18

,7
33

,1
17

$ 
    

 
8,

75
3,

38
7

$ 
    

    
12

5,
26

1,
02

0
$ 

   

98



Ap
pe

nd
ic

es
 |

 3
6

Ap
pe

nd
ix

 7
 –

Gr
an

t-
Fu

nd
ed

 O
pe

ra
tin

g 
Pr

oj
ec

ts

FY
 2

02
3 

Pr
op

os
ed

 B
ud

ge
t

FY
20

23
FY

20
24

FY
20

25
FY

20
26

FY
20

27
FY

20
23

 - 
FY

20
27

Pr
op

os
ed

Bu
dg

et
 P

la
n

 P
la

n
 P

la
n

 P
la

n
 T

O
TA

L

G
ra

nt
 F

un
de

d 
O

pe
ra

tin
g 

Pr
oj

ec
ts

- S
ta

te
 S

ha
re

 O
nl

y

Ri
de

sh
ar

e 
Pr

og
ra

m
Va

np
oo

l
Pr

og
ra

m
 to

 e
nc

ou
ra

ge
 a

s a
 v

ia
bl

e 
al

te
rn

at
iv

e,
 th

e 
us

e 
of

 P
ub

lic
 T

ra
ns

it 
th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
Va

np
oo

l P
ro

gr
am

.
14

1,
81

3
$ 

    
    

   
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
14

1,
81

3
$ 

    
    

   

Ap
pr

en
tic

e 
Pr

og
ra

m
Va

rio
us

Pr
og

ra
m

 to
 cr

ea
te

 u
ni

qu
e 

le
ar

ni
ng

 o
pp

or
tu

ni
tie

s i
n 

va
rio

us
 d

ep
ar

tm
en

ts
 

w
ith

in
 C

AT
S 

fo
r c

ol
le

ge
 st

ud
en

ts
 w

ho
 sh

ow
 in

te
re

st
 in

 p
ub

lic
 tr

an
si

t.
13

5,
70

2
    

    
    

   
- 

- 
- 

- 
13

5,
70

2
    

    
    

   

Tr
an

si
t P

la
nn

in
g

De
ve

lo
pm

en
t

Co
nn

ec
t &

 B
ey

on
d

10
,0

00
    

    
    

    
 

- 
- 

- 
- 

10
,0

00
    

    
    

    
 

Tr
an

si
t P

la
nn

in
g

De
ve

lo
pm

en
t

Ra
il 

Tr
ai

l
8,

60
0

    
    

    
    

   
- 

- 
- 

- 
8,

60
0

    
    

    
    

   

G
ra

nt
-F

un
de

d 
O

pe
ra

tin
g 

Pr
oj

ec
ts

 T
ot

al
29

6,
11

5
$ 

    
    

   
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
29

6,
11

5
$ 

    
    

   

99



Appendices | 37

Appendix 8 – Other Capital Projects Managed by CATS

FY 2021 Proposed BudgetFY 2023 Proposed Budget

Charlotte Gateway Station
Sources of Capital Funding Funding Share Funding Amount

Federal Railroad Administration Cooperative Agreement
Federal TIGER VII Grant Program (FRA) 57% 30,000,000$                  
Match to TIGER VII Grant (Strategic Transportation Investments) 43% 22,719,131 
         FRA Federal Project Total 100% 52,719,131$                  

MPO Allocated State funds (formerly Surface Transportation Block Grant) 17,350,000$                  
Strategic Transportation Investments (STI- Preliminary Engineering & 
Construction) 7,280,869 
City of Charlotte funds for engineering, construction & other uses 9,034,986 
         Non-FRA Federal Project Total 33,665,855$                  

     FRA Cooperative Agreement Total 86,384,986$                  

Federal Transit Administration Grants
Federal Grants NC-04-006 & NC-04-0018 for engineering & construction 80% 22,030,772$                  
Match to FTA 20% 5,507,693 
     FTA Project Total 100% 27,538,465$                  

Other Funding Sources & Uses
MPO Allocated State funds (formerly Surface Transportation Block Grant) 1,400,000$                    
Strategic Transportation Investments (STI- Preliminary Engineering & 
Construction) 9,600,000 
Proceeds from Sale of Land 11,842,625 
NCDOT Rail Division PE Funds 1,925,375 
City of Charlotte funds for engineering, construction & other uses 23,965,014 
     Other Funding Sources Total 48,733,014$                  

TOTAL PROJECT BUDGET 162,656,465$               

100



Appendices | 38

Appendix 8 – Other Capital Projects Managed by CATS

FY 2021 Proposed BudgetFY 2023 Proposed Budget

CityLYNX Goldline Phase II
Sources of Capital Funding Funding Share  Funding Amount 

Federal Section 5309 Small Starts Federal Funds 54% 73,087,380$  
Local Funds Match to Federal Funding (City of Charlotte) 46% 61,965,236 
         Federal Section 5309 Project Total 100% 135,052,616$                   

Federal Section 5309 American Rescue Plan Federal Funds 100% 11,122,146 

100% Local Funds (City of Charlotte) 3,912,619 
100% Local Funds (City of Charlotte) 11,122,146 
TOTAL PROJECT BUDGET 161,209,527$                   

Uses of Capital Funding (as of 02/28/2022) Budget Amount  Expenditures to Date 
10. Guideway & Track Elements 19,476,843$              17,443,745$  
20. Stations, Stops, Terminals, Intermodal 2,392,680                   2,024,387 
30. Support Facilities: Yards, Shops, Admin Buildings - - 
40.Sitework & Special Conditions 33,872,415                23,792,135 
50. Systems 28,500,365                25,951,567 
60. ROW, Land, Exisiting Improvements 1,791,415                   1,490,496 
70. Vehicles 42,104,503                38,657,800 
80. Professional Services 21,861,778                20,662,412 
90. Unallocated Contingency - - 
100. Finance Charges - - 
100% Local Funded Art in Transit - 279,061 
100% Local Funded 87,381 - 
100% Local Funded 11,122,146                - 
TOTAL PROJECT EXPENSE 161,209,526$            130,301,601$                   

101



Appendices | 39

Appendix 9 – FY2023 Budget Schedule

FY 2021 Proposed BudgetFY 2023 Proposed Budget

Month Date Present/Deliver To Details

Jan 26 Metropolitan Transit Commission (MTC)
Presentation of Preliminary Budget: 
Overview

Feb 10 Transit Services Advisory Committee (TSAC)
Presentation of Preliminary Budget: 
Overview

15 Citizens Transit Advisory Group  (CTAG)
Presentation of  Preliminary Budget: 
Overview

16 MTC Managers n/a

23 Metropolitan Transit Commission (MTC) n/a

Mar 16 MTC Managers n/a

23 Metropolitan Transit Commission (MTC) n/a

Apr 19 Citizens Transit Advisory Group  (CTAG)
Presentation of CEO Recommended 
Budget to MTC

20 MTC Managers
Overview of CEO Recommended Budget 
to City Council

27 Metropolitan Transit Commission (MTC)
Presentation of CEO Recommended 
Budget to City Council

Jun 13 Charlotte City Council Adopt Budget

102



(This page intentionally left blank.)

103



104



105



106



107



108



109



110



111



112



113



114



Metropolitan Transit Commission

Charlotte Area Transit System Ridership Report

Mar-22

Mode / Service Percent YTD YTD Percent Avg Daily Ridership per Month
Mar-22 Mar-21 Increase/Decrease FY 2022 FY 2021 Increase/Decrease WeekDay Saturday Sunday

Local
  BOD Local 478,630 475,421 0.7 % 4,154,488 4,185,240 -0.7 % 17,311 11,621 8,510
  Subtotal 478,630 475,421 0.7 % 4,154,488 4,185,240 -0.7 % 17,311 11,621 8,510
Local Express
  Harrisburg Road Express 652 303 115.2 % 4,959 2,593 91.2 % 28 - -
  Northcross Express 1,946 286 580.4 % 5,749 2,311 148.8 % 85 - -
  Idlewild Road Express 836 201 315.9 % 4,990 2,679 86.3 % 36 - -
  Independence Blvd Express 1,766 129 1,269.0 % 5,993 1,084 452.9 % 77 - -
  Lawyers Road Express 849 354 139.8 % 3,989 2,707 47.4 % 37 - -
  Northlake Express 1,434 326 339.9 % 4,595 1,946 136.1 % 62 - -
  North Mecklenburg Express 3,214 205 1,467.8 % 11,158 1,951 471.9 % 140 - -
  Huntersville Express 2,720 421 546.1 % 9,871 3,156 212.8 % 118 - -
  Rea Road Express 1,162 285 307.7 % 5,293 2,553 107.3 % 51 - -
  Huntersville Greenhouse Express 302 176 71.6 % 1,233 1,117 10.4 % 13 - -
  Subtotal 14,881 2,686 454.0 % 57,830 22,097 161.7 % 647 -
Regional Express
  Gastonia Express 983 462 112.8 % 5,891 4,659 26.4 % 43 - -
  Rock Hill Express 897 253 254.5 % 3,968 2,225 78.3 % 39 - -
  Union County Express 664 220 201.8 % 3,109 2,048 51.8 % 29 - -
  Subtotal 2,544 935 172.1 % 12,968 8,932 45.2 % 111 -
Community Circulator
  Neighborhood Shuttles 12,745 14,979 -14.9 % 111,045 133,227 -16.6 % 470 365 119
  Eastland Neighborhood Shuttle 7,926 8,333 -4.9 % 65,138 76,056 -14.4 % 268 259 179
  Pineville-Matthews Road 1,322 1,446 -8.6 % 11,225 12,879 -12.8 % 51 37 -
  Village Rider 3,553 3,805 -6.6 % 29,051 32,391 -10.3 % 131 79 56
  Subtotal 25,546 28,563 -10.6 % 216,459 254,553 -15.0 % 920 740 354
Human Services Transportation
  Special Transportation Services 14,008 13,055 7.3 % 120,609 102,550 17.6 % 551 193 136
  DSS 298 3,103 -90.4 % 19,115 14,336 33.3 % 13 - -
  Subtotal 14,306 16,158 -11.5 % 139,724 116,886 19.5 % 564 193 136
Rideshare Services
  Vanpool 3,741 2,883 29.8 % 28,000 28,141 -0.5 % 151 27 39
  Subtotal 3,741 2,883 29.8 % 28,000 28,141 -0.5 % 151 27 39
Rail
  LYNX Blue Line 389,434 209,692 85.7 % 2,692,200 1,900,475 41.7 % 12,767 16,474 7,476

115



Metropolitan Transit Commission

Charlotte Area Transit System Ridership Report

Mar-22

Mode / Service Percent YTD YTD Percent Avg Daily Ridership per Month
Mar-22 Mar-21 Increase/Decrease FY 2022 FY 2021 Increase/Decrease WeekDay Saturday Sunday

  CityLynx Gold Line 41,849 - n/a 223,151 - n/a 1,402 1,603 796
  Subtotal 431,283 209,692 105.7 % 2,915,351 1,900,475 53.4 % 14,169 18,077 8,272

Total 970,931 736,338 31.9 % 7,524,820 6,516,324 15.5 % 33,873 30,658 17,311

116



117



Sales Tax Collections and Distribution – January 2022
• The January 2022 receipts of $10,221,788 were $2,674,410 (35.4%) above

budget target for the month
• The January 2022 receipts were $2,075,363 (25.5%) above  forecast for the

month.
• The January 2022 receipts were $1,087,015 (11.9%) above January of 2021
Sales Tax Budget Data
 FY2022 sales tax budget is $108,235,200
 The FY22 model forecasts year-end receipts of $130,729,503 which is $22,494,303

(20.78%) above the FY22 budget target of $108,235,200
 FY2021 actual sales tax was $116,669,192

Local Government Sales and Use Tax Distribution
 Source: North Carolina Department of Revenue Sales & Use Distribution Report for

the month February 28, 2022
 Published by NC Secretary of Revenue on 4/12/2022 with actual receipts through

January 2022
 CATS sales tax report only includes Mecklenburg County Article 43 sales tax

FY2022 Budget Sales Tax Receipts (Actuals and Forecasts)

Prior Year Sales Tax Receipts: FY2018 – FY2021

March | CATS Sales Tax Report  FY2022

December Receipts

FY2022 Budget Sales Tax Comparison Year over Year

Fiscal Year Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June Total

FY2021 8,921,474$      9,466,946$     9,245,058$     9,317,741$     9,964,913$    11,402,907$    9,134,772$    6,785,996$    11,253,531$    10,287,447$    8,942,957$         11,945,450$       116,669,192$      

FY2020 9,683,570$      9,787,973$     8,671,558$     9,890,136$     9,858,570$    9,800,116$      8,278,036$    8,606,547$    8,735,473$     7,635,380$     6,997,727$         9,833,896$         107,778,982$      
FY2019 7,708,503$      9,621,386$     9,103,726$     8,067,019$     9,425,129$    8,906,774$      8,195,787$    7,918,012$    10,155,891$    9,880,419$     9,435,500$         9,117,052$         107,535,197$      
FY2018 8,147,197$      8,436,960$     8,784,051$     7,883,713$     8,884,437$    9,324,267$      6,897,695$    7,842,800$    9,303,951$     8,539,748$     9,277,676$         9,699,263$         103,021,757$      

16.7% 8.9% 27.7% 14.7% 22.9% 37.8% 23.5% 5.5% 22.3% -7.0%
8,479,780$    9,053,661$   9,001,133$   8,076,718$   9,319,809$    10,570,984$  7,547,377$    8,322,267$  9,596,200$   8,752,853$   9,128,597$       10,385,820$     108,235,200$   

10.7% 20.7% 31.2% 41.9% 53.3% 66.0% 75.7% 84.3% 94.3% 94.3%
FY22 Budget Target
% of FY22 Budget Achieved 

Year-over-Year Comparison (FY22-FY21)

Jurisdiction Population % of Total Jul 21
Actuals

Aug 21
Actuals

Sep 21
Actuals

Oct 21 
Actuals

Nov 21
Actuals

Dec 21
Actuals

Jan 22
Actuals

Feb 22
Forecasts

Mar 22
Forecasts

April 22
Forecasts

May 22
Forecasts

Jun 22
Forecasts

Total

Charlotte 40.59% 863,985          40.4% 4,585,539$    4,326,315$   4,494,138$   4,603,496$   4,891,177$    5,450,855$    4,126,742$    3,665,227$  4,314,458$   -$  -$  -$  40,457,947$     
Cornelius 1.46% 32,144            1.5% 164,887         155,566        161,601        165,533        181,973         202,796         153,533         136,362       160,517$      - - - 1,482,768         
Davidson 0.61% 13,261            0.6% 69,208           65,295          67,828          69,479          75,073           83,663           63,340           56,256         66,221$        - - - 616,364            
Huntersville 2.76% 62,528            2.9% 311,511         293,901        305,301        312,730        353,982         394,487         298,659         265,258       312,244$      - - - 2,848,074         
Matthew s 1.51% 31,071            1.5% 170,086         160,471        166,696        170,753        175,899         196,026         148,408         131,810       155,158$      - - - 1,475,308         
Mint Hill 1.29% 27,692            1.3% 146,293         138,023        143,377        146,866        156,769         174,708         132,268         117,476       138,285$      - - - 1,294,064         
Pineville 0.43% 9,533              0.4% 48,882           46,119          47,908          49,073          53,968           60,143           45,533           40,441         47,605$        - - - 439,672            
Meck. County 51.35% 1,099,845       51.4% 5,801,983      5,473,992     5,686,335     5,824,704     6,226,423      6,938,889      5,253,305      4,665,800    5,492,265$   - - - 51,363,697       

Total 100.00% 2,140,059       100.0% 11,298,388$  10,659,682$ 11,073,183$ 11,342,634$ 12,115,265$  13,501,568$  10,221,788$  9,078,632$  10,686,753$ 99,977,893$     
YTD Budget 79,967,929$     
Variance 20,009,964$     



119


	Cover 20220427
	MTC Agenda 20220427
	MTC Minutes Draft 202203
	MTC Info Item #1-Bus Priority Study April 2022
	INFORMATION SUMMARY
	SUBJECT: Envision My Ride: Bus Priority Study Update                     DATE:  April 27, 2022


	PP#1 - EMR Study
	MTC Info Item #2 - Regional Coordinated Human Services Plan
	STAFF SUMMARY
	SUBJECT: Regional Coordinated Human Services Plan Update          DATE: April 27, 2022


	MTC Info Attachment 1A - Full Recommendations Tables_Updated 4-12-2022
	PP#2 - CPTHST Plan
	MTC Action Item #1 - FY2022 Amendment
	STAFF SUMMARY
	SUBJECT: MTC Approval                 DATE:  April 27, 2022
	FY2022 Transit Operating Budget Amendments


	PP#3-Action FY2022 Budget Admendments
	MTC Action Item #2 -  FY2023 CATS Proposed Budget and CIP Plan
	STAFF SUMMARY
	SUBJECT: MTC Approval                 DATE:  April 27, 2022
	FY2023 Transit Operating Budget & Debt Services Budget


	MTC Action Attachment #2A - Resolution No. 2022-02 FY2023 CATS Budget
	MTC Action Attachment #2B - FY2023 CATS Proposed Budget Book_Final
	Slide Number 1
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4
	Slide Number 5
	Slide Number 6
	Slide Number 7
	Budget Summary
	Slide Number 9
	Slide Number 10
	Slide Number 11
	Slide Number 12
	Slide Number 13
	Slide Number 14
	Slide Number 15
	Slide Number 16
	Slide Number 17
	Slide Number 18
	Slide Number 19
	Slide Number 20
	Slide Number 21
	Slide Number 22
	Slide Number 23
	Slide Number 24
	Slide Number 25
	Slide Number 26
	Slide Number 27
	Slide Number 28
	Slide Number 29
	Slide Number 30
	Slide Number 31
	Slide Number 32
	Slide Number 33
	Slide Number 34
	Slide Number 35
	Slide Number 36
	Slide Number 37
	Slide Number 38
	Slide Number 39
	Slide Number 40
	Slide Number 41

	PP#4-Action FY2023 Budget Proposal
	MTC Ridership March 2022
	MTC Sales Tax Report March 2022
	March | CATS Sales Tax Report  FY2022

	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page



